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Independent auditor's report 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 
 
 
 
Opinion 

 
We have audited the accompanying parent company financial statements of Adecoagro Vale do 
Ivinhema S.A. ("Company" or "Parent Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 
2020 and the statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year 
then ended, as well as the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Adecoagro Vale do 
Ivinhema S.A. and its subsidiaries ("Consolidated"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 
December 31, 2020 and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. and of Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. and its 
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2020, and the financial performance and the cash flows for the year then 
ended, as well as the consolidated financial performance and the cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil. 
 
Basis for opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Parent Company and Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the ethical requirements established in the Code of 
Professional Ethics and Professional Standards issued by the Brazilian Federal Accounting Council, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Emphasis of matter - Related parties 

 
We draw attention to Note 24 to the financial statements, which describes that the Company maintains 
balances and carries out transactions with its parent company and other related parties in amounts that 
are significant in relation to its financial position and results of operations. Our opinion is not qualified in 
respect of this matter. 
 
Other matters 

 
Statements of value added 
 
The parent company and consolidated statements of value added for the year ended December 31, 2020, 
prepared under the responsibility of the Company's management and presented as supplementary 
information for IFRS purposes, were submitted to audit procedures performed in conjunction with the  
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audit of the Company's financial statements. For the purposes of forming our opinion, we evaluated 
whether these statements are reconciled with the financial statements and accounting records, as 
applicable, and if their form and content are in accordance with the criteria defined in Technical 
Pronouncement CPC 09 - "Statement of Value Added". In our opinion, these statements of value added 
have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the criteria established in the 
Technical Pronouncement, and are consistent with the parent company and consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
 
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the parent 
company and consolidated financial statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company and 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the parent company and consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the parent company and consolidated 
financial statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company and consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on 
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company and consolidated 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company and consolidated 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether these financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
Ribeirão Preto, March 31, 2021 
 
 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Auditores Independentes 
CRC 2SP000160/O-5 
 
 
 
Luis Fernando de Souza Maranha 
Contador CRC 1SP201527/O-5 
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Assets Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 989,868                636,890                       1,056,181            684,054                

Derivative financial instruments 7 40,231                  12,545                         40,231                  12,545                  

Trade and

 other receivables 8 64,063                  73,820                         73,887                  81,023                  

Inventories 9 259,661                201,475                       296,000                230,076                

Biological assets 11 354,171                200,934                       390,836                224,275                

Taxes recoverable 10 68,397                  65,568                         72,856                  70,574                  

Dividends receivable 17,746                  9,458                           -                         -                         

Receivables from related parties 24 1,591                    699                               49                          55                          

Other assets 12 24,471                  32,991                         28,141                  35,666                  

1,820,199            1,234,380                   1,958,181            1,338,268            

Non-current assets -                         

Long-term receivables

Trade and

   other receivables 8 -                         68,712                         -                         68,712                  

Taxes recoverable 10 90,604                  58,335                         91,416                  59,305                  

Judicial deposits 21 8,499                    8,778                           9,787                    10,108                  

Derivative financial instruments 7 10,141                  10,141                  

Deferred income tax and 

social contribution 23 134,851                65,200                         134,265                65,473                  

Other assets 12 19,711                  14,094                         21,150                  15,398                  

263,806                215,119                       266,759                218,996                

Investments 13 144,530                136,272                       -                         -                         

Property, plant and equipment 14 2,311,257            2,320,674                   2,495,629            2,491,271            

Intangible assets 15 20,809                  20,136                         26,667                  26,049                  

Right-of-use 16 974,870                873,055                       1,041,577            930,140                

3,715,272            3,565,256                   3,830,632            3,666,456            

Total assets 5,535,471            4,799,636                   5,788,813            5,004,724            

Parent company Consolidated
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Liabilities and equity Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current liabilities

Trade payables 156,392 102,390 170,391 112,513 

Lease liabilities 17 142,599 139,652 159,741 152,065 

Borrowings 18 245,548 83,556 267,199 108,228 

Borrowings from related parties 18 38,928 33,684 40,813 35,362 

Derivative financial instruments 7 35,777 5,413 35,777 5,413 

Salaries and payroll charges 19 68,112 63,279 79,142 75,451 

Taxes payable 20 20,450 21,791 25,662 27,658 

Dividends payable 56,946 58,416 56,946 58,416 

Other liabilities 22 13,467 6,504 16,618 8,653 

778,219 514,685 852,289 583,759 

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 17 751,222 649,558 797,441 688,863 

Borrowings 18 1,169,887 832,991 1,215,520 859,291 

Borrowings from related parties 18 1,684,245 1,399,953 1,766,046 1,465,379 

Provision for contingencies 21 7,927 6,807 11,163 10,222 

Other liabilities 22 1,170 1,058 2,745 1,949 

3,614,451 2,890,367 3,792,915 3,025,704 

Total liabilities 4,392,670 3,405,052 4,645,204 3,609,463 

Equity 26

Attributable to owners of the parent

Capital 1,155,865 1,335,865 1,155,865 1,335,865 

Capital reserves 13,455 11,512 13,455 11,512 

Revenue reserves 538,188 285,374 538,188 285,374 

Carrying value adjustments (564,707) (238,167) (564,707) (238,167)

1,142,801 1,394,584 1,142,801 1,394,584 

Non-controlling interests 808 677 

Total equity 1,142,801 1,394,584 1,143,609 1,395,261 

Total liabilities and equity 5,535,471 4,799,636 5,788,813 5,004,724 

Parent company Consolidated
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Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue from contracts with customers 28       1,792,587           1,563,797       2,034,877 1,802,395         

Cost of sales 29      (1,278,518)         (1,154,696)     (1,433,411) (1,304,574)       

Changes in the fair value of biological assets 

and agricultural products 12.2           257,746                44,807          279,860 53,029              

Gross profit 771,815         453,908            881,326        550,850            

Selling expenses 30         (113,627)               (64,195)        (132,540) (79,924)             

Administrative expenses 30           (55,968)               (74,788)           (77,030) (90,164)             

Other income, net 31             57,748                46,123            54,110 43,382              

Share of profit of subsidiaries 13 39,738           47,268               -                 -                     

Operating profit

before finance result 699,706         408,316            725,866        424,144            

Finance income 32             19,122 17,901                          20,141 21,834              

Finance costs 32         (290,758)            (184,357)        (308,251)            (197,167)

Finance result (271,636)        (166,456)           (288,110)       (175,333)           

and social contribution 428,070         241,860            437,756        248,811            

Income tax and social contribution 23.2           (93,899)                 (8,294)        (103,585)              (15,245)

334,171         233,566            334,171        233,566            

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent 334,171         233,566            334,171        233,566            

Weighted average number of common shares

in the year (in thousands) 1,335,865        1,347,698            

Basic and diluted earnings per 

thousand shares - R$ 250.15              173.31                 

Parent company Consolidated

Profit before income tax

Profit for the year
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2020 2019 2020 2019

Profit for the year 334,171             233,566            334,171           233,566

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

      Losses on cash flow hedge, net of taxes (312,127)            (42,603)             (312,127)         (42,603)              

Losses on cash flow hedge of investees, net of taxes (13,734)              (2,265)               (13,734)            (2,265)                

(325,861)            (44,868)             (325,861)         (44,868)              

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,310                  188,698            8,310               188,698             

Parent company Consolidated
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Parent company  Consolidated 

Capital reserve Carrying value adjustments

Restricted Hedge Retained earnings

 share plan Reserve for Legal Profits Hedge accounting Deemed (accumulated Total    Non-controlling Total

Note Capital (Note 33.1)  grants reserve to be distributed accounting of investees cost deficit)  equity interests  equity

 

At January 1, 2019 1,347,698   7,073                            107,401      11,015       4,765                    (188,675)       (11,654)        7,985         (13,936)                     1,271,672             427                           1,272,099       

Share-based compensation plan 33.1.1 -               7,600                            -               -              -                         -                  -                -             -                             7,600                     445                           8,045               

Reimbursement of restricted shares 33.1.1 -               (3,161)                          -               -              -                         -                  -                -             -                             (3,161)                   (195)                         (3,356)              

Realization of the deemed cost, net of taxes -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                (955)           955                            -                         -                    

Cash flow hedge, net of taxes 26.6.1 -               -                                -               -              -                         (42,603)          -                -             -                             (42,603)                 (42,603)            

Cash flow hedge of investees, net of taxes -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  (2,265)           -             -                             (2,265)                   (2,265)              

Split-off of investments in subsidiary 13.2 (11,833)       -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                -             -                             (11,833)                 (11,833)            

Profit for the year -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                -             233,566                    233,566                233,566           

Allocation of profit: -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                -             -                             -                         -                    

   Transfer between reserves 26.2 -               -                                137,042      4,826          20,325                  -                  -                -             (162,193)                   -                         -                    

   Proposed dividends -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                -             (58,392)                     (58,392)                 -                            (58,392)            

At December 31, 2019 1,335,865   11,512                         244,443      15,841       25,090                  (231,278)       (13,919)        7,030         -                             1,394,584             677                           1,395,261       

At January 1, 2020 1,335,865   11,512                         244,443      15,841       25,090                  (231,278)       (13,919)        7,030         -                             1,394,584             677                           1,395,261       

Realization of revenue reserves due to the payment of dividends (25,090)                 (25,090)                 (25,090)            

Share-based compensation plan 33.1.1 -               5,040                            -               -              -                  -                -             -                             5,040                     329                           5,369               

Reimbursement of restricted shares 33.1.1 -               (3,097)                          -               -              -                         -                  -                -             -                             (3,097)                   (198)                         (3,295)              

Realization of the deemed cost, net of taxes 26.6.1 -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                (679)           679                            -                         -                    

Cash flow hedge, net of taxes -               -                                -               -              -                         (312,127)       -                -             -                             (312,127)               (312,127)         

Cash flow hedge of investees, net of taxes -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  (13,734)        -             -                             (13,734)                 (13,734)            

Capital decrease 13.2 (180,000)     -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                -             -                             (180,000)               (180,000)         

Profit for the year -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                -             334,171                    334,171                334,171           

Allocation of profit: -               -                                -               -              -                         -                  -                -             -                             -                         -                    

  Transfer between reserves 26.2 -               -                                90,359        16,709       170,836                -                  -                -             (277,904)                   -                         -                    

  Proposed dividends -               -                                -                  -                -             (56,946)                     (56,946)                 -                            (56,946)            

At December 31, 2020 1,155,865   13,455                         334,802      32,550       170,836                (543,405)       (27,653)        6,351         -                             1,142,801             808                           1,143,609       

Revenue reserves
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(i) Non-cash transactions are presented in Note 28.

 December 

31, 2020 

 December 

31, 2019 

 December 

31, 2020 

 December 

31, 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax and social contribution           428.070          241.860           437.756          248.815 

Adjustments                        -                        -                        -                        - 

Depreciation and amortization           592.501          571.082           645.556          623.958 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (i)           157.372          132.984           173.313          146.828 

Changes in impairment of assets                       0                (210)                   (47)                (238)

Changes in the fair value of biological assets and agricultural products         (257.746)           (44.807)         (279.860)           (53.029)

Adjustment to present value of lease transactions (i)             41.035            24.726             43.828            25.717 

Disposal/ write-off of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets              (1.677)             (9.159)                 (924)             (8.562)

Profit/loss on sale of subsidiary                        -           (38.555)                        -           (38.555)

Impairment of trade receivables                   272                  182                   276                  379 

Share-based compensation payment               5.040               7.600               5.369               8.045 

Gain/loss on equity interests           (39.738)           (47.268)                        -                        - 

Gain/loss on derivative instruments, net of hedge accounting              (8.774)           (68.009)               4.130           (68.009)

Finance result, net of hedge accounting           196.930          209.717           196.930          220.291 

Adjustment to fair value of receivables           (28.779)             (5.031)           (28.779)             (5.031)

Changes in provision for contingencies                   815                (781)                   605                (864)

      1.085.322          974.330       1.198.154       1.099.744 

Changes in assets and liabilities

Trade and other receivables           (13.555)            20.153           (18.372)            28.447 

Derivative financial instruments               9.721               4.142               9.721               4.142 

Inventories           (54.734)           (12.829)           (62.425)           (13.238)

Biological assets           104.509            13.385           113.299            13.054 

Taxes recoverable           (33.169)            21.705           (32.548)            23.168 

Judicial deposits                   584                  296                   583                  646 

Other assets               2.903           (17.374)               1.773           (18.553)

Trade payables (i)             45.401           (29.790)             49.754           (32.402)

Salaries and payroll charges               4.833                  550               3.691               1.263 

Taxes payable              (1.341)             (4.925)              (1.975)             (4.298)

Dividends payable                        -            30.141                        -            30.124 

Leases and other liabilities         (200.893)        (171.925)         (216.081)        (186.127)

Cash provided by operations           949.581          827.859       1.045.574          945.970 

Income tax and contributions paid              (2.757)                        -              (4.445)             (2.114)

Interest paid         (187.192)        (154.723)         (199.476)        (165.937)

 Net cash provided by operating activities           759.632          673.136           841.653          777.919 

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital reduction in investee                        -            25.000                        -                        - 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (i)         (648.153)        (646.171)         (711.938)        (698.280)

Purchases of intangible assets              (3.598)             (5.988)              (3.864)             (6.262)

Interest received             11.325                        -             11.323                  546 

Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries             21.616            22.341             21.616            22.341 

Dividends received               9.458            30.100                        -                        - 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment             12.503               2.149             13.001               2.890 

Net cash used in investing activities         (596.849)        (572.569)         (669.862)        (678.765)

Cash flows from financing activities

New borrowings           660.103          537.435           769.256          609.444 

Repayments of borrowings         (279.156)        (300.574)         (376.857)        (372.148)

Repayments of borrowings from related parties           (94.848)        (149.234)           (96.853)        (149.234)

Payments of derivative financial instruments              (8.410)                        -              (8.410)                        - 

Receipt from/payment to related parties                 (892)                    79                        -                        - 

Dividends paid to owners of the parent           (83.506)           (28.250)           (83.506)           (28.250)

Reimbursement of restricted shares              (3.097)             (3.168)              (3.295)             (3.363)

 Net cash provided by financing activities           190.194            56.288           200.335            56.449 

            

Increase in cash and cash equivalents, net           352.978          156.855           372.127          155.606 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year           636.890          480.035           684.054          528.448 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year           989.868          636.890       1.056.181          684.054 

Parent company Consolidated
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 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue

Gross sales and services 1,960,519            1,835,146          2,232,425        2,105,072          

Changes in the fair value of biological assets 257,746               44,807               279,860            53,029               

Other income 416,172               446,229             438,488            463,052             

Provision for impairment of trade receivables (272)                      (182)                    (276)                  (379)                    

 2,634,165            2,326,000          2,950,497        2,620,774          

 

 

Inputs acquired from third parties 

Cost of sales and 

    services (544,865)              (433,417)            (604,973)          (479,703)            

Transportation expenses (102,701)              (53,317)              (111,507)          (61,393)              

Electricity (3,583)                   (3,729)                (4,325)               (5,112)                

Third-party services (70,556)                (71,248)              (79,566)             (80,017)              

Impairment/recovery of assets (1,141)                   2,367                  (2,619)               3,112                  

Other expenses (86,453)                (97,125)              (101,399)          (109,266)            

 

 (809,299)              (656,469)            (904,389)          (732,379)            

 

Gross value added 1,824,866            1,669,531          2,046,108        1,888,395          

Depreciation and amortization (749,873)              (704,066)            (818,869)          (770,786)            

 

Net value added generated by the entity 1,074,993            965,465             1,227,239        1,117,609          

 

Value added received through transfer

Share of profit of subsidiaries 39,738 47,268

Finance income 19,122 17,901 20,141 21,834

 

Total value added to distribute 1,133,853 1,030,634 1,247,380 1,139,443

 

Distribution of value added

Personnel:

  Direct compensation (244,736)              (247,693)            (288,942)          (292,182)            

  Benefits (55,661)                (51,387)              (70,566)             (63,771)              

  Government Severance Indemnity Fund for Employees (FGTS) (18,095)                (22,006)              (21,263)             (25,178)              

Taxes and contributions:

  Federal (61,557)                (79,095)              (70,880)             (87,760)              

  State (120,824)              (205,042)            (144,166)          (229,744)            

  Municipal (164)                      (125)                    (167)                  (144)                    

Interest and foreign exchange gains/losses (290,758)              (184,357)            (308,251)          (197,167)            

Rentals (7,887)                   (7,363)                (8,974)               (9,931)                

Dividends (56,946)                (58,392)              (56,946)             (58,392)              

Profits reinvested for the year (277,225)              (175,174)            (277,225)          (175,174)            

 

Value added distributed (1,133,853)           (1,030,634)        (1,247,380)       (1,139,443)        

Parent company Consolidated
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1 General information 
 

1.1 Operating activities 
 
Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. (the "Company"), headquartered in Angélica, State of Mato Grosso 
do Sul, was formed on March 17, 2006; its corporate objectives include the production and sale of 
sugar and ethanol, and the co-generation and sale of electricity. In addition to its own sugar cane 
production, the Company also purchases processed sugar cane from third parties (agricultural 
partners and suppliers). The Company's main stockholder is Adecoagro Brasil Participações S.A., 
which, together with other subsidiaries and associates, forms the Adecoagro Group (Note 1.2). 
 
In the 2020/2021 crop, approximately 4,483,000 metric tons of sugar cane (2019/2020 - 4,738,000 
metric tons) were crushed at the Angelica plant, with the production of 271,361 metric tons of VHP 
sugar, 183,913 cubic meters of anhydrous ethanol, 9,125 cubic meters of hydrated ethanol and 
438,884 Megawatt/hour of electricity (2019/2020 - 84,114 metric tons of VHP sugar, 246,136 cubic 
meters of anhydrous ethanol, 77,737 cubic meters of hydrated ethanol and 542,797 Megawatt/hour 
of electricity). 
 
In the 2020/2021 crop, approximately 5,538,000 metric tons of sugar cane (2019/2020 - 4,898,000 
metric tons) were crushed at the Ivinhema plant, with the production of 295,009 metric tons of VHP 
sugar, 269,014 cubic meters of hydrated ethanol and 391,973 Megawatt/hour of electricity 
(2019/2020 - 50,885 metric tons of VHP sugar, 384,537 cubic meters of hydrated ethanol and 
600,819 Megawatt/hour of electricity). 
 
In the 2020/2021 crop, the subsidiary Adeacoagro Energia Ltda ("AEN"), located in Ivinhema, State 
of Mato Grosso do Sul, produced a volume of 185,161 Megawatt/hour of electricity (2019 - 256,091 
Megawatt/hour of electricity). 
 
In the 2020/2021 crop, approximately 1,083,000 metric tons of sugar cane (2019/2020 - 1,209,312 
metric tons) were crushed at the plant of the subsidiary Usina Monte Alegre Ltda. ("UMA"), of which 
129,994 metric tons arose from the third harvest of sugar cane receiving organic treatment (2019 - 
29,260 metric tons), with the production of 41,484 metric tons of VHP sugar, 30,467 metric tons of 
white sugar, 8,659 metric tons of organic sugar, 37,655 thousand cubic meters of hydrated ethanol, 
2,462 thousand cubic meters of organic ethanol and 67,545 Megawatt/hour of electricity 
(2019/2020 - 37,595 metric tons of VHP sugar, 38,879 metric tons of white sugar, 1,783 metric tons 
of organic sugar, 48,083 thousand cubic meters of hydrated ethanol and 82,361 Megawatt/hour of 
electricity).  
 
In 2020, the Company and UMA were certified by the RenovaBio decarbonization credit (CBIO) 
program. During the year, 491,756 CBIOs were traded and recognized in "Other income and 
expenses, net". At December 31, 2020, there were 2,512 CBIOs in inventory, which had already been 
input into the digital bookkeeping system, available for sale at acquisition cost.  
 
The RenovaBio (CBIO) program is included in the Brazilian biofuels policy established by the 
Federal Government (Law 13,576/2017) and regulated by the Ministry of Mines and Energy 
(Ordinance 419/2019). To be entitled to the credit and make it available for sale, companies are 
required to obtain the certification, which describes the metrics for conversion of the biofuel sold 
into CBIOs. This conversion is made by an independent certification body. After the sales of the 
products and the digital bookkeeping of the credits by a specific body (SERPRO), they are traded on 
the Brazilian stock exchange ("B3"). 
 
In 2019, pursuing a market opportunity, the Company sold its subsidiary Q065 Negócios Imobiliária 
Ltda., the main asset of which is Fazenda Alto Alegre (Tocantins-GO) (Note 13.2).



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 

 
 
 

10 of 72 
 

 

The Company has investments in subsidiaries whose business is the production of sugar and ethanol 
and the co-generation and sale of electricity, as well as the production, processing, storage, sale, 
import and export of agricultural products. 
 

1.2 The Adecoagro Group 
 

The Adecoagro Group (the "Group") is one of the main producers of food and renewable energy in 
South America. It operates in Argentina, Brazil and Uruguay, carrying out activities related to the 
production of grains, rice, oilseeds, peanuts, dairy products and their byproducts, sugar and ethanol, 
on its own or partnership land, in addition to the co-generation of electricity. 
 
In Brazil, its operations comprise the production of ethanol, sugar, electricity, soybean, corn and rice 
in the states of Mato Grosso do Sul and Minas Gerais, and are represented by the following 
companies: 
 

• Adecoagro Brasil Participações S.A. (the Group's parent company) 

• Adeco Agropecuária Brasil Ltda. 

• Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. (operational holding company) 

• Usina Monte Alegre Ltda. 

• Adecoagro Energia Ltda. 

• Monte Alegre Combustíveis Ltda.  

• Angélica Energia Ltda. (dormant) 

• Adecoagro Agricultura e Participações Ltda. (subsidiary of Adecoagro LP SCS) 
 

These companies share the corporate structure, as well as apportioned corporate, management and 
operating costs (Note 24.1). The Group is controlled by Adecoagro S.A., a listed company with shares 
traded on the New York Stock Exchange, headquartered in Luxembourg. 
 

1.3 COVID-19 effects  
 

In December 2019, a new strain of Coronavirus ("COVID-19") was reported in China which began 
spreading globally and in March 2020 the World Health Organization ("WHO") declared it to be a 
pandemic. Effects on economic activities worldwide have been extensive.  The Brazilian government 
formed a crisis committee to monitor the impacts of COVID-19 and announced several measures 
(related to tax and other matters) to mitigate the effects of the disease. Brazilian public health 
authorities, as well as several state and local authorities, have adopted or recommended measures to 
protect the population's health and wellbeing.  
  

The Company and its subsidiaries have been monitoring the effects of COVID on their businesses 
and on the main estimates and critical accounting judgments, as well as on other balances that could 
generate uncertainties and affect the financial statements. The more significant matters are 
described below: 
  

a) Measures to protect its internal controls and business processes;  
b) Monitoring effects on revenue and margins from a potential decrease in demand; 
c) Effects on the realizable value of inventories (CPC 16/ IFRS IAS2 - "Inventories"); 
d) Effects on impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (CPC 01/ IAS 36 - 
"Impairment of assets"); 
e) Risk of losses on financial assets (CPC 48/ IFRS 9 - "Financial Instruments"); 
f) Impact on cash flows from restrictions on access to borrowings and the covenant breaches. 
 
Having analyzed these potential risks management did not identify significant impacts on the 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.  
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The Company and its subsidiaries responded quickly and assertively creating a Crisis Committee 
charged with oversight over the prevention protocols customized for each unit, measures taken to 
identify weaknesses and risks and actions for protection, control and prevention from the contagion 
within the Company's working environment safeguarding suppliers, customers and business 
partners. 
  

The road and port terminal activities serving the Company and its subsidiaries' agricultural and 
manufacturing operations have been operating without significant interruptions. However, the 
demand for the Company's ethanol in the second quarter of the year, at the height of the pandemic, 
was partially reduced. This had little effect on profit or loss due to a production mix strategy change, 
prioritizing the production of sugar, which benefitted from the higher prices and a strong U.S. dollar 
exchange rate, resulting in an increase of 6% in total revenue in relation to 2019. Demand and prices 
for ethanol subsequently returned at higher amounts compared to the prior year.  
  

Short-term and long-term liquidity have been unaffected. The Company's debt structure includes 
maturity tenures of over five years and U.S. dollar debt is mostly for payable to related parties. 
  

The Company has been closely monitoring the situation taking the necessary measures to protect 
individuals and ensuring its operations continue as a going concern. 
 
 

2 Summary of significant accounting policies  
 

The main accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied in the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are described in specific explanatory 
notes, related to the items presented. 
 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and were adjusted 
to reflect the appreciation of property, plant and equipment items recorded in 2009. Financial assets 
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) are adjusted to reflect fair value 
measurement. 
 

2.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures  
 

The following standards are effective for the year beginning on January 1, 2020. The adoption of 
these standards by the Group did not have significant impacts on its financial statements: 
 

• Changes in the conceptual framework for CPC standards; 

• Definition of business (amendments to CPC 15); 

• Definition of material (amendments to CPC 26 and CPC 23);  

• Impact of the initial adoption of the changes of the Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 
(amendments to CPC 40 and CPC 48);  

• Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; and 

• Impact of the initial application of the amendment to CPC 06—"COVID-19-Related Rent 
Concessions" (amendments to CPC 06).  
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There are no other CPCs or ICPC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to 
have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
 

2.2 Presentation of the financial statements 
 
The parent company and consolidated financial statements have been prepared and are being 
presented in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil issued by the Brazilian 
Accounting Pronouncements Committee (CPCs), and disclose all information significant to the 
financial statements, which is consistent with the information utilized by management in the 
performance of its duties. The issue of these financial statements was authorized by the Company's 
management on March 31, 2021.  
 
In the parent company financial statements, subsidiaries are recorded on the equity method of 
accounting. Adjustments are made in the parent company and consolidated financial statements to 
reflect the same profit or loss and equity attributable to the owners of the parent company. 
 

2.2.1 Consolidation 
 
The following accounting practices are applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 

(a) Subsidiaries 
 
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity 
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company. They are deconsolidated 
from the date that control ceases. 
 
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between consolidated 
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated, unless the transaction provides 
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred. The accounting practices of subsidiaries have been 
changed, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the practices adopted by the Company. 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and its 
subsidiaries, namely: 
 

• Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. (Parent company) 

• Usina Monte Alegre Ltda. 

• Adecoagro Energia Ltda. 

• Angélica Energia Ltda. 

• Monte Alegre Combustíveis Ltda. 
 

2.3 Foreign currency translation 
 

a) Functional and presentation currency 
 
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements are 
presented in Brazilian Reais/Reais (R$), which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency.  



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 

 
 
 

13 of 72 
 

 

b) Transactions and balances 
 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the foreign exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or the dates of valuation when items are remeasured.  
 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognized in the statement of income, except when designated for hedge accounting 
and, therefore, deferred in equity as cash flow hedges. 
 

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and trade 
receivables are presented in the statement of income within "Finance income or costs".  
 

2.4 Financial assets 
 

2.4.1  Classification and measurement 
 

The Company and its subsidiaries assess which business models apply to the financial assets held by 
the Company and classify the financial instruments into the appropriate categories: debt 
instruments and equity instruments. At initial recognition, a financial asset is measured: at fair value 
through profit or loss;  at amortized cost; or at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to initial recognition, unless the Company changes 
the business model for managing the financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are 
reclassified on the first day of the reporting period subsequent to the change in business model. 
 

(a) Fair value through profit or loss 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise derivative instruments and debt 
instruments, the cash flow characteristics of which are not held within a business model whose 
objective is to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell (Note 5.1). 
 

c) Amortized cost 
 

The financial assets classified as amortized cost are investments, the business model of which 
establishes that they are held for the collection of contractual cash flows, which represent only 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount (Note 5.1). 
 

d) Fair value through other comprehensive income 
 

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, with gains or losses reversed to 
profit or loss on derecognition. Financial assets, when present, comprise debt instruments that are 
held within a business model to collect cash flows and sell. 
 

2.4.2 Recognition and measurement 
 

 Normal purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, upon fulfillment of 
the obligations by the parties. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially 
recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of income. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently 
carried at fair value.  
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Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have 
expired or have been transferred, and the Company and its subsidiaries have transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.  
 

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the "financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss" category are presented in the statement of income within "Finance income" or 
"Finance costs". 
 

2.4.3 Impairment of financial assets 
 

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
loss rates. The Company and its subsidiaries use judgment in making these assumptions and 
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on past history, existing market conditions 
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key 
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1. 
 

2.4.4 Offsetting of financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right 
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business 
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 
 

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 
 
Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Fair value is the value at which 
an asset can be realized and a liability settled between knowledgeable and willing parties under 
normal market conditions. The fair value of derivative financial instruments can be obtained from 
market prices or from pricing models that consider current market rates, as well as the credit quality 
of the counterparty. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract 
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. 
 
Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument are recognized in profit or loss during 
the year, except when these are cash flow hedge instruments, where hedge accounting is adopted and 
changes in fair value are recognized in comprehensive income.  
 
The Company and its subsidiaries have adopted hedge accounting and designated the following 
instruments and items as hedges: 
 

a) Hedging instruments 
 

• Non-derivative debt financial instruments, linked to the U.S. dollar (Advances on Foreign 
Exchange Contracts (ACC)), Export Prepayment (PPE), Related parties Export Credit Note 
(NCE), among others); 

• Derivative financial instruments (Exchange rate swap). 
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b) Hedging transactions 
 

• Forecasts of sales or firm futures commitments, both related to commodities and denominated in 
foreign currency (USD), considered as highly probable because they are based on the sales 
projections of the sales department. 

 
c) Hedged risks 

 

• Hedged risk is the risk of exchange variations of one dollar for one dollar in future exports of 
commodities due to fluctuations of the U.S. dollar in comparison with the Brazilian Real.  

 

2.5.1 Cash flow hedge 
  

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as 
cash flow hedges is recognized in equity within "Carrying value adjustments". The change, which is 
included in comprehensive income, is presented net of the portion transferred to finance results. The 
amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to the statement of income in the periods when the 
hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). 
 

The gain or loss relating to the effective and non-effective portion of hedging instruments, that is, 
borrowings in foreign currency and foreign exchange rate swaps, is recognized in the statement of 
income within "Finance income" or "Finance costs".  
 
When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is 
recognized in profit or loss when the transaction is recognized in the statement of income. When a 
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in 
equity is immediately transferred to the statement of income within "Finance income" or "Finance 
costs". 
 

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when 
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  
 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less selling costs and its value in use.  
 

2.7 Trade payables 
 
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due in one year 
or less. Otherwise, they are presented in non-current liabilities. 
 
Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method. In practice, they are usually recognized at the amount of the 
related invoice. 
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2.8 Other current and non-current assets and liabilities 
 

Other assets are stated at cost or realizable value including, when applicable, interest and indexation 
accruals. 
 

Other liabilities are stated at known or estimated amounts including, when applicable, accrued 
interest and indexation charges and foreign exchange gains/losses. 
 
 

3 Critical accounting estimates 
 

Accounting estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.  
 

Based on assumptions, the Company and its subsidiaries make estimates concerning the future. The 
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below: 
 

3.1 Impairment of financial assets 
 

 The Company and its subsidiaries analyze the financial assets subject to the model of expected credit 
losses established by CPC 48 - Financial Instruments. Impairment is calculated based on the analysis 
of each financial asset, segregated by portfolios, based on contracts with customers and their 
characteristics. Based on the studies, historical averages of the credit stages for the previous three 
years (including the current year) are projected, aiming at estimating the expected loss percentages 
for each portfolio.  
 

3.2 Fair value of biological assets 
 

3.2.1 Sugar cane plantations 
 

 The fair value of the biological assets of the Company and its subsidiaries represents the present 
value of estimated net cash flows relating to these biological assets, determined by application of 
assumptions established in discounted cash flow models. 
 

           In the case of the Company and for the subsidiary Usina Monte Alegre Ltda. ("UMA") this valuation 
is made according to the CPC 29 - "Biological Assets and Agricultural Products" guidelines, 
considering the Company's best estimates in determining the assumptions used to calculate the 
present value of sugar cane cash flows on the reporting date. These assumptions are mainly related 
to the estimated productivity of the sugar cane crops, the amount of ATR (Total Sugar Recoverable) 
per metric ton of sugar cane, the estimated future prices of ATR, the costs required for future crop 
treatment, costs with bearer plants and costs related to the harvest, loading and transportation of 
sugar cane (Note 11).  

           

The valuation estimates may differ considerably from the actual results if one or more assumptions 
are not confirmed. The Company and UMA assessed the impact on the fair value of biological assets 
at December 31, 2020 through sensitivity analyses, applying an increase or decrease in the following 
variables: (i) price of the sugar cane metric ton, and (ii) sugar cane volume production. The other 
variables were held constant. Accordingly, a change (increase or decrease) of 5% in the moving 
average of six months, in the future price of sugar (New York Stock Exchange quotation, Sugar #11) 
for 2020 would lead to an increase or decrease of, approximately, R$ 56,677 (2019 - R$ 42,553) in 
the amount of the biological assets at December 31, 2020. In addition, if the estimated projection of 
sugar cane were to increase or decrease by 5%, the biological asset value would increase or decrease 
by, approximately, R$ 41,812 (2019 - R$ 28,449). Based on the assumptions observed in the   
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recurring measurement of the fair value of biological assets, the Company's hierarchy classification 
was Level 3. 

 
3.2.2  Grain plantations 

 
For the Company and UMA this valuation considers the best estimates in determining the 
assumptions used to calculate the present value of the cash flows of soybean and corn on the 
reporting date. These assumptions are mainly related to the estimated productivity of the crops, the 
estimated future prices of these commodities, the costs required for future crop treatment, costs with 
the rental of land and costs related to the harvest of these commodities (Note 11). 
 

 Based on the assumptions observed in the recurring measurement of the fair value of biological 
assets, the Company's hierarchy classification was Level 3.  

 
3.3 Deferred income tax and social contribution 
  
 The Company and its subsidiaries recognize deferred taxes on temporary differences and income tax 

and social contribution losses. The realization of deferred tax credits is estimated considering 
projections of future profitability based on internal assumptions and future economic scenarios. 

 
3.4 Uncertain tax treatments 
  

According to ICPC 22, management assessed the key tax treatments adopted in the outstanding 
periods that are subject to questioning by the tax authorities, that is, the last five years. In its 
assessment, the Company did not identify any impacts from the adoption of the interpretation.  
 

3.5 Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments 
 

 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques. The Company and its subsidiaries use their judgment to select among a variety 
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of 
each reporting period. 

  
3.6 Incremental borrowing rate  

 

The Company estimates an incremental rate on leases considering the interest rate that the lessee 

would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the leased 

asset, with similar terms. CPC 06 R2 allows the incremental rate to be determined for a group of 

contracts that share similar features.  

 

Determining this rate requires a high degree of judgment and must take into account the lessee's 

credit risk, lease contract term, nature and quality of the guarantees offered and the economic 

environment in which the transaction occurs. When defining the rate, the Company preferably uses 

readily available information and, subsequently, carries out any necessary adjustments to establish 

its incremental borrowing rate. 
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4 Financial risk management 
 

4.1 Financial risk factors 
 
The activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
 
The risk management policy of the Company and its subsidiaries provides guidelines on transactions 
and requires the diversification of transactions and counterparties. According to this policy, the 
nature and general position of financial risks are monitored and managed on a regular basis to 
evaluate their results and their financial impact on cash flows. The credit limits are also reviewed 
periodically. 
 
The risk management policy of the Group is established by the Risk Committee, which assesses the 
risk of the positions (volumes, costs and prices) in agricultural products of its own production and 
purchased from third parties, when applicable, in Spot and Futures and Options markets in Brazil 
and abroad, including the use of derivative financial instruments, and in relation to interest and 
foreign exchange risks. 
 

4.1.1 Market risk 
 
Market risks are protected in accordance with the corporate strategy in the risk management policy. 
The subsidiaries contract derivatives to reduce exposure to market risk. 
 

a) Interest rate risk 
 
This risk arises from the possibility that the subsidiaries may incur losses due to fluctuations in 
interest rates that lead to an increase in financial costs on borrowings obtained in the market. The 
subsidiaries continuously monitor market interest rates in order to assess the need to contract new 
instruments to hedge against the volatility risk of these rates. 
 

b) Exchange rate risk 
 
This risk arises from the possibility that the subsidiaries may incur losses due to fluctuations in 
interest rates that lead to a reduction of the amounts billed or an increase the finance costs of 
borrowings obtained in the market. 
 
Mismatches between the timing and the amount of these assets and liabilities are managed by means 
of the use of protection mechanisms (hedges) available in the market, as decided by the management 
of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 

c) Credit risk 
 
The sales policy of the Company and its subsidiaries considers the credit risk level they are willing to 
accept in the course of their business. The diversification of their receivables portfolio, the selectivity 
in accepting customers, as well as the monitoring of sales terms and individual limits of position are 
the procedures adopted to minimize possible default problems in receivables. 
 
Sales of the main products of the Company and its subsidiaries are concentrated on a small number 
of customers, all of whom present good credit quality and low risk of default: 
 
  



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 

 
 
 

19 of 72 
 

 

 
 
(*) The percentage refers to the proportion of sales compared to total sales in the year. Transactions 
with the related party Adecoagro Uruguay S.A. (Note 24), a company that is part of the Adecoagro 
Group headquartered in Uruguay, correspond to approximately 35% of the Company's total sales 
(2019 - 5%) and 37% of the sales of the Company and its subsidiaries (2019 - 7%), and mainly 
comprise sales of granulated and VHP sugar. 
 

d) Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company and its subsidiaries may lack sufficient net funds to honor 
its financial commitments as a result of a mismatch of terms and volumes among expected receipts 
and payments. 
 

To manage cash liquidity in local and foreign currency, assumptions for future disbursements and 
receipts are made, as well as for capital contributions, which are monitored daily by the Treasury 
area. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Product

Number of 

customers Percentage (*) Number of customers Percentage (*)

Ethanol 26 50% 30                                     48%

VHP sugar 4 40% 4                                        37 %

Electricity 1 5 8% 21                                      9%

Parent company Consolidated

Parent company

Less than From 1 From 2 Over

1 year to 2 years to 5 years 5 years

Trade and other pay ables  1 7 7 ,428.28             1 ,1 7 0                    -                      -                1 7 8,598 

Borrowings         301 ,330       408,01 8      303,633      656,633          1 ,669,61 4 

Borrowings - related parties         1 7 2,394        954,955       983,51 2         67 ,7 7 9          2 ,1 7 8,640 

Lease liabilities         1 42,599          81 ,884      346,234      323,1 04              893,821  

Deriv ativ e financial instruments            35,7 7 7                      -                      -                      -                  35,7 7 7  

       829,528  1,446,026  1,633,379  1,047,516        4,956,450 

Total

At December 31, 2020

Consolidated

Less than From 1 From 2 Over
1 year to 2 years to 5 years 5 years

Trade and other pay ables         1 97 ,290             1 ,31 3                1 1 4            1 ,31 8              200,035 

Borrowings         325,439       441 ,608       31 9,629      656,833          1 ,7 43,508 

Borrowings - related parties         1 80,7 41        961 ,41 7    1 ,07 1 ,7 7 6         7 4,205          2 ,288,1 39 

Lease liabilities          1 59,7 41          89,408       37 6,1 95      331 ,838              957 ,1 82 

Deriv ativ e financial instruments            35,7 7 7                      -                      -                      -                  35,7 7 7  

       898,989   1,493,745   1,767,713  1,064,194         5,224,641 At December 31, 2020

Total
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(i) The liquidity risk of borrowings takes into consideration projected future interest.  
 
To manage cash liquidity in local and foreign currency, assumptions for future disbursements and 
receipts are determined, as well as for capital contributions, and these are monitored daily by the 
Treasury area. 
 

4.2 Capital management 
 

The objectives of the Company and its subsidiaries when managing capital are to ensure the 
availability of sufficient funds for investments necessary to continue as a going concern and the 
necessary liquidity for their activities. 

 
Consistent with other companies in the industry, the Company and its subsidiaries monitor capital 
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio corresponds to the net debt expressed as a percentage of 
total capitalization. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including "current and non-current 
borrowings" as shown in the balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capitalization is 
calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. 
 
The gearing ratios of the Company and its subsidiaries at December 31 were as follows: 
 

 
 
Lease liabilities (Note 16) are not being considered as part of the net debt of the Company and the 
Group, because they refer to operations linked to the agricultural partnership agreements, purchases 
of sugar cane and lease of assets.  
 

4.3 Fair value estimation 
 

 The carrying values of trade receivables, less impairment provision are assumed to approximate 
their fair values. The fair value of financial assets for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting 
the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company 
and its subsidiaries for similar financial instruments. 

  
The Company and its subsidiaries adopted CPC 48 for financial instruments that are measured in the 
balance sheet at fair value; this requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the 
following hierarchy:  
 
 
 
  

Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Borrowings 1 8  3,1 38,608   2,350,1 84    3 ,289,57 8     2 ,468,260 

Less: cash and cash equiv alents 6    (989,868)    (636,890)   (1 ,056,1 81 )       (684,054)

Net debt  2,1 48,7 40   1 ,7 1 3,294    2 ,233,397      1 ,7 84,206 

Total equity   1 ,1 42,801    1 ,394,584    1 ,1 43,609      1 ,395,261  

Total capitalization   3 ,291 ,541    3 ,1 07 ,87 8    3 ,37 7 ,006     3 ,1 7 9,467  

Gearing ratio - %                 65                  55                   66                    56 

Parent company Consolidated
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• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). 
 

• Inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). 

 

• Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on market data (that is, unobservable inputs) 
(Level 3). 

 

The following table presents the assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries that are 
measured at fair value at December 31. 
 

 

 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at 
the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company and 
its subsidiaries is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. 
 
 
 
  

Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 Measured at fair v alue through profit or loss

Assets

Deriv ativ e financial instruments 5 1 0,1 41     1 0,1 41     7 1 0        7 1 0           

Trade and other receiv ables 8 -            -            91 ,7 52    91 ,7 52    

Biological assets 1 1 354,1 7 1  354,1 7 1  200,934 200,934 

Other inv estments 1 2 1 ,7 93       1 ,7 93       1 ,609       1 ,609       

-          1 0,1 41     355,964  366,1 05  7 1 0        91 ,7 52    202,543 295,005  

Deriv ativ e financial instruments 8 35,1 20 657 35,7 7 7    5,41 3 5,41 3       

35,1 20  657           -            35,7 7 7    5,41 3    -           -            5,41 3       

Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 Measured at fair v alue through profit or loss

Assets

Deriv ativ e financial instruments 5 -          1 0,1 41     1 0,1 41     7 1 0        7 1 0           

Trade and other receiv ables 8 -            7 8,469    7 8,469    91 ,7 52    91 ,7 52    

Biological assets 1 1 390,836 390,836 224,27 5 224,27 5 

Other inv estments 1 2 3,232       3 ,232      2 ,91 2       2 ,91 2       

-          1 0,1 41     47 2,537  482,67 8 7 1 0        91 ,7 52    227 ,1 87 31 9,649 

Deriv ativ e financial instruments 8 35,1 20  657           35,7 7 7    5,41 3    5,41 3       

35,1 20  657           -            35,7 7 7    5,41 3    -           -            5,41 3       

Consolidated

Parent company

2020 2019

Liabilities

2020 2019

Liabilities
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The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques which maximize the utilization of 
market data. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in Level 2. 
 

The fair value of assets based on insertions of market and internal assumptions are considered to be 
Level 3. Within this level, the Company considers the fair value of biological assets (Note 11) and 
some other minority investments of companies not listed on the stock exchange. 
 

5 Financial instruments by category 
 
Based on CPC 48 - Financial Instruments, management assessed which business models applied to 
the financial instruments held by the Company and classified them into the appropriate categories of 
the new standard. There were no transfers between levels during the year.  
 
The Company and its subsidiaries assess at the end of each year whether there is objective evidence 
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. The main effects are shown below: 

 
  



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 

 
 
 

23 of 72 
 

 

5.1 Assets as per balance sheet 
 

 
 
  

Parent company

Fair value

Amortized through

cost profit  or loss Total

At December 31, 2020

  Cash and cash equiv alents 989,868                 -                       989,868                 

  Trade and other receiv ables 64,063                    -                       64,063                    

  Judicial deposits 9,885                       -                       9,885                       

  Deriv ativ e financial instrum ents 40,231                    1 0,1 41                50,37 2                    

  Div idends receiv able 1 7 ,7 46                    -                       1 7 ,7 46                    

  Receiv ables from  related parties 1 ,591                        -                        1 ,591                       

  Funrural credits with agricultural partners (Note 1 1 ) 6,7 37                       6,7 37                      

  Other inv estm ents (Note 1 1 ) -                            1 ,7 93                   1 ,7 93                       

1 ,1 30,1 21              1 1 ,934                1 ,1 42,055              

At December 31, 2019

  Cash and cash equiv alents 636,890                 -                       636,890                 

  Trade and other receiv ables 50,7 80                    91 ,7 52                1 42,532                  

  Judicial deposits 1 0,469                    -                       1 0,469                    

  Deriv ativ e financial instrum ents 1 1 ,835                     7 1 0                      1 2,545                     

  Div idends receiv able 9,458                       -                       9,458                       

  Receiv ables from  related parties 699                           -                        699                          

  Funrural credits with agricultural partners (Note 1 1 ) 6,7 37                       6,7 37                      

  Other inv estm ents (Note 1 1 ) -                            1 ,609                   1 ,609                       

7 26,868                 94,07 1                820,939                 

Fair value

Amortized through

cost profit  or loss Total

At December 31, 2020

Cash and cash equiv alents 1 ,056,1 81 0 1 ,056,1 81

Trade and other receiv ables 7 3,887 0 7 3,887

Judicial deposits 1 1 ,37 1 0 1 1 ,37 1

Receiv ables from  related parties 49 49

Deriv ativ e financial instrum ents 40,231 1 0,1 41 50,37 2

Funrural credits with agricultural partners (Note 1 1 ) 6,7 37 0 6,7 37

Other inv estm ents (Note 1 1 ) 0 3,232 3,232

1 ,1 88,456 1 3,37 3 1 ,201 ,829

At December 31, 2019

Cash and cash equiv alents 684,054 0 684,054

Trade and other receiv ables 57 ,983 91 ,7 52 1 49,7 35

Judicial deposits 1 2,028 0 1 2,028

Receiv ables from  related parties 55 0 55

Financial instrum ents 1 1 ,835 7 1 0 1 2,545

Funrural credits with agricultural partners (Note 1 1 ) 6,7 37 6,7 37

Other inv estm ents (Note 1 1 ) 0 2,91 2 2,91 2

7 7 2,691 95,37 4 868,066

Consolidated
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5.2 Liabilities as per balance sheet 
 

 
 
 
 

Parent company

Fair value

Amortized through

cost profit  or loss Total

At December 31, 2020

  Lease liabilities 893,821 -                      893,821                 

  Borrowings 1 ,41 5,435 -                      1 ,41 5,435              

  Borrowings from related parties 1 ,7 23,1 7 3 -                      1 ,7 23,1 7 3              

  Deriv ativ e financial instruments 0 35,7 7 7 35,7 7 7                    

  Trade pay ables 1 56,392 -                      1 56,392                  

  Div idends pay able 56,946 -                      56,946                    

4,245,7 67             35,7 7 7                4,281 ,544              

At December 31, 2019

  Lease liabilities 7 89,21 0 -                      7 89,21 0                 

  Borrowings 91 6,547 -                       91 6,547                  

  Borrowings from related parties 1 ,433,637 -                      1 ,433,637             

  Deriv ativ e financial instruments 0 5,41 3                   5,41 3                       

  Trade pay ables 1 02,390 -                      1 02,390                 

  Div idends pay able 58,41 6 -                      58,41 6                    

3 ,300,200             5,41 3                   3 ,305,61 3              

Fair value

Amortized through

cost profit  or loss Total

At December 31, 2020

  Lease liabilities 957 ,1 82 -                       957 ,1 82                  

  Borrowings 1 ,482,7 1 9 0 1 ,482,7 1 9              

  Borrowings from related parties 1 ,806,859 0 1 ,806,859              

  Deriv ativ e financial instruments 0 35,7 7 7 35,7 7 7                    

  Trade pay ables 1 7 0,390 0 1 7 0,390                 

  Div idends pay able 56,946 0 56,946                    

4,41 7 ,1 50              35,7 7 7                4,509,87 3             

At December 31, 2019

  Lease liabilities 840,928                  -                        840,928                  

  Borrowings 967 ,436                  83                         967 ,51 9                  

  Borrowings from related parties 1 ,500,7 41               -                        1 ,500,7 41               

  Deriv ativ e financial instruments -                            5,41 3                   5,41 3                        

  Trade pay ables 1 1 2,51 3                   -                        1 1 2,51 3                   

  Div idends pay able 58,41 6                     -                        58,41 6                     

3 ,480,034              5,496                   3 ,485,530              

Consolidated



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 

 
 
 

25 of 72 
 

 

5.3 Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments 
 

The sensitivity analysis of the changes in financial assets and liabilities presented the exposure to the 
specific risk of each type of financial instrument, taking into consideration the risk factor to which 
each instrument is exposed (foreign exchange rate, interest rate or pricing) and the three possible 
stressed scenarios based on stressed factors of 5%, 25% and 50%. 
 

 
 
 

5.4 Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Probable scenario 

(5%)

Possible scenario 

(25%)

Possible scenario 

(50%)

Risk factor

Cash and cash equiv alents Decrease in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (28,394)               (1 41 ,97 2)            (283,944)           

Trade receiv ables Decrease in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (30)                        (1 48)                     (296)                    

Borrowings Increase in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (1 06,51 3)             (532,564)            (1 ,065,1 27 )        

Deriv ativ e financial instruments

   Margin for stock brokers Decrease in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (2,01 2)                  (1 0,058)              (20,1 1 6)              

   Sugar futures Increase in commodity  price R$ / US$ (1 8,1 28)               (90,638)              (1 81 ,27 7 )            

   Ethanol futures Increase in commodity  price in R$ (7 7 )                        (386)                    (7 7 3)                    

   Swap contracts Increase in interest curv e IPCA / CDI (1 ,458)                  (6,7 1 2)                 (1 2,280)              

(1 56,61 1 )             (7 82,47 7 )           (1 ,563,81 1 )        

Probable scenario 

(5%)

Possible scenario 

(25%)

Possible scenario 

(50%)

Risk factor

Cash and cash equiv alents Decrease in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (28,948)               (1 44,7 38)           (289,47 6)           

Trade receiv ables Decrease in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (335)                      (1 ,67 5)                 (3 ,350)                 

Borrowings Increase in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (1 1 0,697 )             (553,485)            (1 ,1 06,97 0)        

Deriv ativ e financial instruments

   Margin for stock brokers Decrease in foreign exchange rate R$ / US$ (2,01 2)                  (1 0,058)              (20,1 1 6)              

   Sugar futures Increase in commodity  price R$ / US$ (1 8,1 28)               (90,638)              (1 81 ,27 7 )            

   Ethanol futures Increase in commodity  price in R$ (7 7 )                        (386)                    (7 7 3)                    

   Swap contracts Increase in interest curv e IPCA / CDI (1 ,458)                  (6,7 1 2)                 (1 2,280)              

(1 61 ,654)             (807 ,692)           (1 ,61 4,241 )        

Impacts on profit  or loss

Parent company

Impacts on profit  or loss

Consolidated

2020 2019 2020 2019

Financial instruments:

Foreign exchange variations on borrowing contracts - 

(derivative financial instruments) 312,127           42,603             325,861           44,868             

312,127           42,603             325,861           44,868             

Deferred taxes on the items above (106,123)          (14,485)            (110,793)          (15,255)            

206,004           28,118             215,068           29,613             

Parent company Consolidated
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6 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits with banks and other short-term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and with immaterial risk of 
change in value. The balance in the statement of cash flows is presented net of bank overdrafts. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet, where applicable. 
 

 
 

(i) At December 31, 2020, these transactions refer to investments in Bank Deposit Certificates (CDB), 
earning interest at rates that range from 97% to 103% (2019 - 99% to 101%) of the Interbank Deposit 
Certificate (CDI) rate, with immediate liquidity and no risk of change in value.  
 
In Consolidated, these refer to investments in CDBs, earning interest at rates that range from 96% to 
103% (2019 - 85% to 101%) of the CDI rate, with immediate liquidity and no risk of change in value. 
 

(ii) Refer to investments earning interest at rates that range from 65% to 99% of the CDI rate, with 
immediate liquidity.  

Parent company Consolidated 

2020 2019 2020 2019

Cash and banks - in Brazil 2,427             2 ,649             38,1 89 3,892

Cash and banks - abroad (U.S. dollar) 567 ,887        59,802          57 8,952 61 ,808

Total cash and banks 57 0,31 4        62,451           61 7 ,1 41        65,7 00          

Inv estment fund 60,000          -                  60,000 0

Bank Deposit Certificate (CDB) (i) 359,366        521 ,045        37 8,852 559,248

Repurchase agreements (ii) 53,303          0 59,01 5

Other 1 88                 91                    1 88 91

Total financial investments 41 9,554        57 4,439        439,040       61 8,354        

Total funds available 989,868       636,890       1 ,056,1 81     684,054        
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7 Derivative financial instruments  
 
Derivative financial instruments are held for trading and classified as a current asset or liability. 
 
Outstanding transactions 

  

 
  
(i) Guarantee account for brokers that guarantees the liability position, without immediate availability 

of funds. 
 

(ii) The transactions with futures contracts of sugar were contracted by the Company to hedge the prices 
of the agricultural commodities in the futures market. At December 31, 2020, the notional amounts 
of futures contracts totaled US$ 63,025,116 (2019 - US$ 29,408,687 of futures contracts), referring 
to 217,475 metric tons (2019 - 101,498 metric tons). 
  

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Non-deliv erable forward (NDF) - U.S. Dollar -           -           7 1 0         -           -              -           7 1 0         -           

Margin for stock brokers (i) 40,231   -           1 1 ,835   -           40,231       -           1 1 ,835   -           

Futures contracts - sugar (ii) -           35,01 5    -          5,41 3       -              35,01 5    -          5,41 3       

Futures contracts - ethanol -           1 05           -           -            -               1 05           -           -            

Index swap 1 0,1 41    657           -           -            1 0,1 41        657           -           -            

50,37 2    35,7 7 7    1 2,545    5,41 3       50,37 2       35,7 7 7    1 2,545    5,41 3       

Current (40,231 ) (35,7 7 7 )  (1 2,545) (5,41 3)     (40,231 )     (35,7 7 7 )  (1 2,545) (5,41 3)     

Non-current 1 0,1 41    -           -          -           1 0,1 41       -           -          -           

Parent company Consolidated 

2020 2019 2020 2019
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8 Trade and other receivables  
 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold, and other receivables relate to  
services rendered in the ordinary course of the Company's and its subsidiaries' business. The 
Company and its subsidiaries hold the trade receivables with the objective of receiving the 
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them initially at fair value and subsequently at 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for losses. If receipt is expected 
in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current 
assets.  
 

 
The outstanding balances are expected to be realized in the short term, and the analysis of these 
receivables did not reveal losses above the amount already provided.  
 

(i) At December 31, 2020, the Company included the amount of R$ 114 (2019 - R$ 2,038), and the 
Company and UMA the amount of R$ 1,289 (2019 - R$ 2,188) of receivables from the related party 
Adecoagro Uruguay S.A. (Note 24). 
 

(ii) In 2019, the Company recorded receivables from the sale of its subsidiaries Q043 Negócios 
Imobiliários Ltda. and Q065 Negócios Imobiliários Ltda. In 2020, there was a capital decrease in 
favor of ABP (Note 26.1). The credits were used in the capitalization of Adecoagro Agricultura e 
Participações Ltda. 
 

(iii) At December 31, 2020, the Company has no accounts overdue (2019 - balances overdue for more 
than 30 days of R$ 11, for more than 60 days of R$ 16 and for more than 90 days of R$ 60). 
 
The Consolidated accounts include balances overdue for more than 30 days of R$ 1; with no balances 
overdue for more than 60 days, and balances overdue for more than 90 days of R$ 178 (2019 - 
balances overdue for more than 30 days of R$ 26, for more than 60 days of R$ 72 and for more than 
90 days of R$ 220). 
 
The transactions are provided according to the Company's impairment policies (Note 2.6). 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019

Domestic customers 42,240       45,967       50,201       53 ,1 81        

Foreign customers (i) 22,27 7       4,995          24,343       5,1 83          

Less: prov ision for impairment of 

               trade receiv ables (iii) (454)           (1 82)           (657 )           (381 )           

64,063       50,7 80       7 3 ,887       57 ,983       

Receiv ables for sale of subsidiary  (ii) 91 ,7 52       91 ,7 52       

64,063       1 42,532     7 3 ,887       1 49,7 35     

Current (64,063)    (7 3,820)    (7 3,887 )    (81 ,023)     

Non-current         68,7 1 2         68,7 1 2 

Parent company Consolidated 
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9 Inventories  
 
Inventories are stated at the average cost of purchase or production; when lower than net realizable 
value, a provision is recorded to reduce inventories to market value. Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less completion expenses and costs to sell. 
 

 
(i) A provision for losses on the realization of inventories reduces inventories when lower than market 

value, based on future sales or best expectation of realization. 
 

(ii) At December 31, 2020, the CBIO balances available for sale in the Company amount to 1,968 and in 
UMA to 544, totaling 2,512 CBIOs input into the digital bookkeeping system. 

 
The quantities of inventories of finished products on hand were as follows: 
 

 
  

Parent company Consolidated 

2020 2019 2020 2019

Finished product - anhy drous ethanol 99,057      68,441                99,057      68,441              

Finished product - hy drated ethanol 54,7 90      59,908                55,21 7       69,237              

Finished product - organic ethanol 5,7 07         

Finished product -VHP sugar 3,458         87 2                       7 ,7 48         1 ,083                 

Finished product - granulated sugar 2,552         7 ,597                 

Finished product - organic sugar 8,039         2 ,27 6                

Prov ision for inv entory  losses (i) (47 )                     

1 57 ,305    1 29,221              1 7 8,320    1 48,587            

Agricultural inputs 45,648      45,003                52,522       48,423              

Fuel and lubricants 4,257         3 ,697                   4,829         4,1 20                 

Auxiliary , maintenance and other materials 52,447      23,554                 60,323      28,946              

Renov abio - CBIOs (ii) 4                  6                  

     259,661                 201 ,47 5      296,000             230,07 6 

2020 2019 2020 2019

Anhy drous ethanol - cubic meters 61 ,080       44,486                 61 ,080       44,486              

Hy drated ethanol - cubic meters 34,385       42,844                 34,67 3       48,956               

Organic ethanol - cubic meters 2,456          

VHP sugar - metric tons 7 35              962                       5,1 05          1 ,1 03                  

Granulated sugar - metric tons 1 ,7 87          8,1 06                 

Organic sugar - metric tons 6,357          1 ,804                 

Parent company Consolidated 
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10 Taxes recoverable  
 

 
 

(i) The ICMS recoverable will be offset against taxes due on domestic sales of ethanol considering, in 
the case of tax credits on property, plant and equipment purchases, the proportion determined by 
applicable tax legislation.  
 
Tax credits are expected to be realized through 2026. 
 

 
 

(ii) Withholding Income Tax (IRRF) arises from prepayments by financial institutions related to 
financial investments (yield). IRRF will be used to offset against other Federal taxes administered by 
the Brazilian Federal Revenue Service; offset can only be made after the upload of information into 
the Digital Tax Bookkeeping System (ECF).  
 

(iii) The PIS-COFINS credits related to the acquisition of inputs will be used during the period and 
deducted from tax payable. 
 

(iv) The Special System of Refund of Tax Amounts to Exporting Companies (REINTEGRA) is linked to 
exports; this credit will be used to offset against other federal taxes administered by the Brazilian 
Federal Service. 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019

Value-added Tax on Sales and 

  Serv ices - ICMS (i) 1 51 ,224               1 1 8,957             1 52,801             1 20,561  

Withholding Income Tax (IRRF) (ii) 2,502                    3 ,1 1 6                  2 ,67 6                  3 ,306      

Social Integration Program (PIS) and Social

    Contribution on Rev enues (COFINS) (iii) 21 5                        27 6                      267                      7 81           

Reintegra - PIS/COFINS (iv ) 4,523                    99                        4,7 27                  99             

Corporate Income Tax (IRPJ) 48                          48                        47 2                      1 ,391       

Social Contribution on Net Income (CSLL) 1 2                           1 2                         346                      306          

National Institute of -                       -            

  Social Security  (INSS) 1 7 1                        1 00                      323                      292          

Excise Tax (IPI) (v ) 306                        1 ,295                  2 ,633                  3 ,1 1 5       

Tax Recov ery  Program (REFIS) -                         27                        28             

1 59,001               1 23,903             1 64,27 2             1 29,87 9 

Current (68,397 )               (65,568)                            (7 2,856)    (7 0,57 4)

Non-current 90,604                 58,335                91 ,41 6                59,305    

Parent company Consolidated

Parent company Consolidated

2020 2020

2021 60,61 9 61 ,541

2022 to 2024 7 0,000                7 1 ,021                

2025 to 2026 20,605 20,239

1 51 ,224 1 52,801
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(v) Excise Tax (IPI) credits related to the purchase of inputs to manufacture granulated sugar taxed at 
zero rate. After the submission of Reimbursement Requests, the amounts will be used to offset 
against other federal taxes administered by the Brazilian Federal Service. 
 
 

11 Biological assets 
 
At December 31, 2020, the Company owned a total of 160,759 hectares of cultivated land (2019 - 
150,282 hectares) in the State of Mato Grosso do Sul, and UMA owned 15,892 hectares (2019 - 
15,759 hectares) of cultivated land in the State of Minas Gerais, totaling 176,651 hectares (2019 - 
166,041) or through agricultural partnership arrangements. This sugar cane is used as the raw 
material in the industrial process to produce sugar, ethanol and electricity. In the case of UMA, 1,820 
hectares of cultivated land (2019 - 1,562) were allocated for the cultivation of organic sugar cane.  
 
The cultivation of sugar cane begins with the planting of seedlings in land owned by the Company or 
by third parties, and the first harvest occurs after a period of 12 to 18 months after planting, when 
the cane is harvested and the root ("stubble") remains in the ground. After each harvest (year/crop), 
the treated stubble grows again and produces, on average, six crops. 
 
The land owned by the entity on which crops and bearer plants are planted is classified as property, 
plant and equipment, and is not included in the fair value of biological assets. 
 

11.1 Key assumptions used for measuring the fair value  
 

11.1.1 Model and assumptions of sugar cane 
 

(a) Projected cash inflows are obtained by the multiplication of (i) the estimated production, measured 
in kilograms of ATR for sugar cane, and (ii) the estimated futures market price of a kilogram of ATR. 
 

(b) Projected cash outflows are formed by estimates of (i) costs required for the harvest; (ii) costs with 
the bearer plant; and (iii) cost of capital (agricultural partnership, machinery and equipment, and 
labor). 
 
Based on the estimates of revenue and costs, the Company and UMA determine cash flows to be 
generated in the following 12 months and adjust them to present value, considering a discount rate 
compatible with the remuneration of the corresponding investment. The changes in the fair value are 
recorded as biological assets with a corresponding entry to "Changes in the fair value of biological 
assets" in the statement of income for the year. 
 
The model and assumptions used to determine the fair value are the best estimates of management 
at the balance sheet date and are reviewed annually and, if necessary, adjusted. 
 
The following assumptions were used to determine the related value: 
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a) Sugar cane  
 

 
 
b) Grains 
 

 
 
The discount rate utilized to calculate the fair value of biological assets considers the CDI + a spread 
of 2.5%. At December 31, 2020, this rate was 4.45% p.a. (2019 - 7.01% p.a.). 
 
 

11.2 Changes in the fair value of biological assets  
 

 
 
 
 
  

Parent company Consolidated

2020 2019 2020 2019

Total estimated harv esting area (in hectares) 1 44,620.7 2 1 36,61 8.48 1 58,497 .04 1 50,637 .04 

Expected y ield (metric ton/hectare) 82.54             83.47             82.32             84.1 2             

Total Recov erable Sugar (ATR) per metric ton of sugarcane (in kg) 1 28.00          1 29.7 5           1 28.34          1 30.23          

Projected av erage price of ATR (in R$) 0.84               0.64               0.84               0.64               

Parent company Consolidated

2019 2019

Sugarcane Grains Total Total Sugarcane

Organic 

sugarcane Grains Total Total

Historical cost 236,1 37        7 7 2                 236,909       1 99,651        261 ,822         8,81 3         1 ,1 55             27 1 ,7 90       226,808        

Fair v alue (35,97 5)        (35,97 5)        (30,1 39)        (44,91 9)         (2,596)       (47 ,51 5)        (42,509)         

Biological assets at January  1 200,1 62        7 7 2                 200,934       1 69,51 2        21 6,903         6,21 7         1 ,1 55             224,27 5       1 84,300         

Changes:

Crop treatments (iii) 234,285        1 8,939          253,224        235,253        260,826        7 ,894         1 9,905          288,625       27 0,289        

Depreciation of right-of-use assets/agricultural partnership 1 34,21 7        1 34,21 7        1 1 4,7 80        1 46,41 7         1 ,801          1 48,21 8        1 27 ,623         

Decreases resulting from harv esting (ii) (487 ,521 )      (4,429)          (491 ,950)      (363,41 8)     (531 ,802)       (1 3 ,050)     (5,290)          (550,1 42)      (41 0,966)      

Changes in the fair v alue of biological

  assets and agricultural products (i) 254,553        3 ,1 93            257 ,7 46       44,807         269,293        7 ,098        3 ,469           27 9,860      53 ,029           

Final balance of biological assets: 335,696        1 8,47 5           354,1 7 1        200,934       361 ,637         9,960         1 9,239          390,836       224,27 5         

Comprised of:

Historical cost 269,37 5        1 8,47 5           287 ,850        236,909       298,696        7 ,941         1 9,239          325,87 6       21 3,7 53         

Fair v alue 66,320         66,320         (35,97 5)        62,941           2 ,01 9         64,960         1 0,522           

Final balance of biological assets: 335,696        1 8,47 5           354,1 7 1        200,934       361 ,637         9,960         1 9,239          390,836       224,27 5         

2020 2020

Parent company 

2020 2020 2019 

Total estimated harvesting area (in hectares): 

Soybean area with significant biological asset growth 1,178                    1,178               855 

Soybean area without significant biological asset growth 6,718                   7,220              

7,896                   8,398              855                   

Consolidated 
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(i) The changes in the fair value of biological assets and harvested agricultural products refer to the 
result obtained on the valuation of the biological asset at the time of harvest, recorded in the 
statement of income for the year with a corresponding entry to the cost of the harvested sugar cane, 
which will form part of the production cost of sugar and ethanol and the result determined on the 
market value adjustment of the unharvested biological asset.  

 
The Company and UMA had gains of R$ 152,258 and R$ 11,658, respectively, from harvested sugar 
cane and gains of R$ 102,263 and R$ 10,212 from unharvested sugar cane (2019 - gains of R$ 57,795 
from harvested sugar cane and R$ 1,234 from unharvested sugar cane).   
 

(ii) At December 31, 2020, the decrease in the biological asset value for the sugar cane crop of the 
Company and UMA of R$ 544,852 (2019 - R$ 410,066), included R$ 527,736 (2019 - R$ 394,696) 
recorded in "industrial production cost" and R$ 17,116 (2019 - R$ 15,370) capitalized as bearer plant 
costs in "property, plant and equipment". 
 

(iii) Refers to crop treatments of ratoon cane capitalized in the year, to be depreciated in the following 
year, as the harvest progresses. 

 
(iv) Costs incurred in biological production assets include those related to sugar cane from agricultural 

partners. These costs consider the partnership contracts included in CPC 06 R2, which had an effect 
on assets through the depreciation of the right of use, as well as the purchase costs of sugar cane 
through fully compliant agricultural partnership contracts, that is, those that are not under the 
standard. 
 

 
12 Other assets  

 

 
 

(i) Advances by the Company and UMA to suppliers of materials and sugar cane, and to agricultural 
partners are stated at cost.  
 

(ii) At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company made advances to agricultural partners for cultivated 
area (underlying asset) still pending transfer of ownership by the agricultural partner. 

 
(iii) The Company and UMA have immaterial investments in Centro de Tecnologia Canavieira S.A. 

(CTC). At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had a 0.27% interest, represented by 2,070 
common shares and UMA had a 0.20% interest, represented by 1,535 common shares.  

 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019

Salary  adv ances 3,592           4,41 1             4,503         5,626            

Adv ances to suppliers (i) 1 1 ,67 3         1 0,91 7          1 4,306      1 2,347          

Adv ances - agricultural partnership (ii) 9,01 4           1 0,7 1 8          9,01 4         1 0,7 1 8          

Prepaid expenses 1 1 ,37 3         1 2,693          1 1 ,37 3       1 2,694          

Other inv estments (iii) 1 ,7 93           1 ,609            3 ,232         2 ,91 2            

Funrural credits with agricultural partners (iv ) 6,7 37           6,7 37            6,7 37         6,7 37            

Other 1 26             30                   

44,1 82         47 ,085          49,291      51 ,064          

Current (24,47 1 )       (32,991 )        (28,1 41 )     (35,666)        

Non-current 1 9,7 1 1         1 4,094          21 ,1 50       1 5,398          

Parent company Consolidated 
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(iv) The Company has credits with agricultural partners, which are pending consolidation by the 
Brazilian Federal Revenue Service of the payments in installments of Rural Workers' Assistance 
Fund (Funrural) debits, to be received (Note 20). 
 
 

13 Investments (parent company) 
 

 Investments in subsidiaries are recorded based on the equity accounting method in the parent 
company financial statements. 

  
The individual financial statements of the subsidiaries (Note 1.2) were prepared by the Company's 
management and approved on March 31, 2021.  
 

13.1 Information on investees 
 

 
 
 
  

Number of Ownership Profit

quotas interest Equity for the year

At December 31, 2020

Subsidiaries

Usina Monte Alegre Ltda 9,901 ,1 87 ,603       1 00.00% 1 33,7 37          21 ,992                 

Adecoagro Energia Ltda. 21 ,1 05,500               1 00.00% 1 1 ,592              1 7 ,7 46                 

Angelica Energia Ltda 9,999                         99.99% 1 0                      -                        

-                             -                      -                   -                       

At December 31, 2019 -                               -                       -                     -                        

Subsidiaries -                               -                       -                     -                        

Usina Monte Alegre Ltda 9,901 ,1 87 ,602       99.99% 1 25,350           1 3 ,1 54                 

Adecoagro Energia Ltda. 21 ,1 05,500               1 00.00% 1 1 ,592              34,387                

Angelica Energia Ltda 9,999                         99.99% 1 0                      -                        
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13.2 Changes in investments 
 

 

(i) On April 17, 2019, the Company reduced the capital of Adecoagro Commodities Ltda. ("ACO") by   
R$ 25,000 in local currency, as it was surplus to its needs, based on article 1082, item II of            
Law 10,406/02. 
 

(ii) On October 31, 2019, the Company spun-off its investment in Adecoagro Commodities Ltda. 
("ACO") in the amount of R$ 12,230, as per the appraisal report issued on that date. 
 
On October 31, 2019, Adeco Agropecuária Brasil Ltda. ("AAB") was merged with ACO, in the amount 
of R$ 12,230, and became a direct subsidiary of the Company. 
 
At December 31, 2019, the Company spun-off its investment in AAB in the amount of R$ 11,833, as 
per the appraisal report issued on that date. 
 

(iii) In January 2019, the investment in Q065 Negócios Imobiliários Ltda. in the amount of R$ 63,200 
was sold; the investment was written off at a cost of R$ 12,526, and a gain of R$ 38,555 was 
recorded. 
 

(iv) In 2019, AEN distributed dividends of R$ 30,100 in local currency, of which: R$ 5,100 on April 22; 
R$ 15,000 on August 28; and R$ 10,000 on November 25. On March 31, 2020, AEN ratified the 
proposal for dividend distribution related to the 2019 profit in the amount of R$ 9,458. 

 
 
 
 
  

Q065

Usina Adecoagro Adecoagro Negócios  Adeco Angelica Adecoagro

Monte Alegre Commodities Energia Imobiliários Agropecuária Energia Agricultura e

Ltda. Ltda. Ltda. Ltda.  Brasil S.A Ltda. Participações Ltda. Total

At January 1, 2019 1 1 3,7 83                 37 ,1 06                   1 6,7 61             1 2,526                                           -                      1 0                                          -          1 80,1 86 
-                           -                           -                    -                     -                         -                 

Capital reduction (i) -                           (25,000)                  -                    -                     -                        -                 -                                     (25,000)       

Equity  in the results of inv estees 1 3,1 53                    1 24                          34,388            -                     (397 )                     -                 47 ,268        

Distribution of div idends (iv ) -                           -                           (30,1 00)           -                     -                         -                 (30,1 00)       

Proposed div idends (iv ) (9,458)             (9,458)         

Share of other comprehensiv e income/loss of 

subsidiaries (2,265)                     -                           -                    -                     -                         -                 (2,265)         

Merger of inv estment (ii) -                           -                           -                    -                     1 2,230                -                1 2,230        

Partial split-off of inv estment (ii) -                           (1 2,230)                  -                    -                     (1 1 ,833)               -                (24,063)      

Sale of inv estment (iii) -                           -                           -                    (1 2,526)            -                        -                (1 2,526)       

At December 31, 2019                    1 24,67 1                                  -                  1 1 ,591  -                                                  -                      1 0                                          -          1 36,27 2 

At January 1, 2020 1 24,67 1                 -                           1 1 ,591             -                                                  -   1 0                  1 36,27 2      
-                

Pay ment of capital (v ) 1 80,000                          1 80,000      

Split-off of inv estment in subsidiary (v ) (1 80,000)                        (1 80,000)    

Equity  in the results of inv estees 21 ,992                    -                           1 7 ,7 46            -                     -                        -                 -                                     39,7 38        

Distribution of div idends (iv ) -                           -                           (1 7 ,7 46)           -                     -                         -                 -                                     (1 7 ,7 46)       

Share of other comprehensiv e income/loss of 

subsidiaries (1 3,7 34)                  -                           -                    -                     -                         -                 -                                     (1 3 ,7 34)       

At December 31, 2020                   1 32,929                                 -                  1 1 ,591  -                                                  -                      1 0                                          -          1 44,530 
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(v) At December 31, 2020, the management of AEN approved the distribution of dividends totaling     
R$ 17,746. 
 

(vi) On August 10, 2020, the Company acquired Adecoagro Agricultura e Participações Ltda. ("AAP"). 
On October 29, 2020, a capital contribution was made in land and receivables of R$ 180,000. 
Subsequently, the Company's investment in AAP was assigned to ABP and a return of capital 
mandated. 
 

14 Property, plant and equipment 
 
Buildings, equipment, bearer plants, premises and improvements, industrial facilities, machinery, IT 
and communication equipment, furniture, fittings, vehicles and others are stated at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation. Land is stated at historical cost and is not depreciated. The historical 
cost includes expenses directly attributable to the purchase, including the financing costs for the 
acquisition of qualifying assets, which are capitalized during the period of construction and 
preparation of the asset for its intended use. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will be 
realized and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced item 
or part is derecognized. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to reduce the costs to their residual values 
over their estimated useful lives, except for bearer plants, for which the method used is that of 
productivity over the useful life.  
 
Depreciation is recorded in the statement of income as cost of sales and selling and administrative 
expenses. 
 
The useful life of property, plant and equipment is reviewed, at least annually. The residual values 
and the review of the useful lives of assets are based on the economic utilization of the asset. The 
changes in the estimated useful lives or residual values are recognized prospectively as changes in 
accounting estimates. 
 
The carrying amount of an asset is immediately written down to its recoverable amount if it is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts 
and are recognized within "Other income (expenses), net" in the statement of income. 
 
Annually, the sugar, ethanol and electricity facilities and agricultural equipment are renovated 
during the Company's and UMA's intercrop period, as part of the regular maintenance program. The 
costs related to intercrop maintenance and depreciation of the assets during the intercrop period are 
classified as property, plant and equipment and allocated to the production cost of the next harvest. 
 
The deemed cost of property, plant and equipment, net of tax effects, as at January 1, 2009, is 
recognized based on CPC 37 guidelines. 
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14.1 Parent company 

 

 
 
  

Furniture and

Buildings, IT and fittings,

Bearer premises and Industrial communication Machinery and devices Intercrop Construction in Advances Total

Land plants improvements facilities equipment equipment and tools Vehicles maintenance progress to suppliers PP&E

A t  Ja nu a ry  1, 2019 85,506                 835,349               239,275               285,182               4,631                    633,858               20,119                 44,661           35,283              21,302                    9,733                      2,214,899         

A ddit ion s (v ) 3 8 5 ,6 1 1             2 5 ,3 8 6               1 ,5 7 3                  2 ,1 8 2                  2 6 ,4 8 2               1 ,4 3 5                  6 ,7 4 2            1 5 0,8 4 9          7 0,9 1 1                   1 4 ,7 4 9                   6 8 5 ,9 2 0           

Wr ite‑offs (7 4 )                       (1 8 2 )                     (6 3 )                       (7 ,4 1 0)                 (1 ,1 6 0)                 (2 ,4 1 9 )           -                          -                                -                                (1 1 ,3 08 )            

Tr a n sfer s fr om  (to) ta x es r ecov er a ble (ii) -                             -                             -                             (8 9 2 )                    -                       -                          -                                -                                (8 9 2 )                  

Tr a n sfer s -                             -                             1 0 ,2 8 6                4 0,3 6 9               1 1 8                       4 2 ,9 7 9               4 1 3                      5 ,4 2 0            5 ,5 7 1                (8 1 ,4 6 9 )                 (2 3 ,6 8 7 )                 -                           

Depr ecia t ion (2 6 9 ,2 6 6 )           (1 8 ,7 2 1 )              (1 7 ,9 4 7 )              (2 ,3 2 9 )                (9 0,5 6 8 )              (2 ,03 3 )                (1 5 ,4 02 )        (1 5 1 ,6 7 9 )         (5 6 7 ,9 4 5 )         

A t  Decem ber 31, 2019  85,506                 951,694               256,152               308,995              4,539                   604,449              18,774                 39,002          40,024              10,745                    795                          2,320,674         

Tota l cost 8 5 ,5 06               1 ,9 5 9 ,1 4 0         3 4 0,6 5 8             4 2 7 ,5 00             2 0,2 1 9                1 ,1 4 5 ,3 5 6         2 9 ,4 9 6               1 5 1 ,8 5 1        6 2 5 ,2 1 6          1 0 ,7 4 5                   7 9 5                         4 ,7 9 6 ,4 8 2       

A ccu m u la ted depr ecia t ion -                             (1 ,007 ,4 4 6 )       (8 4 ,5 06 )              (1 1 8 ,5 05 )            (1 5 ,6 7 9 )              (5 4 0,9 07 )           (1 0,7 2 2 )              (1 1 2 ,8 4 9 )      (5 8 5 ,1 9 2 )         -                                -                                (2 ,4 7 5 ,8 08 )     

Residu a l v a lu e 85,506                 951,694               256,152               308,995              4,539                   604,449              18,774                 39,002          40,024              10,745                    795                          2,320,674         

A t  Ja nu a ry  1, 2020 85,506                 951,694               256,152               308,995              4,539                   604,449              18,774                 39,002          40,024              10,745                    795                          2,320,674         

A ddit ion s (v ) 3 5 0,5 4 4             2 7 ,3 7 4               6 9 9                      7 9 6                      2 8 ,2 6 4               2 ,5 6 9                  3 ,2 9 4            2 1 3 ,8 5 0          2 8 ,8 4 8                  2 1 ,2 1 4                   6 7 7 ,4 5 2           

Pa y m en t  of ca pita l in  a ssocia te (v i) (8 1 ,08 5 )              (8 1 ,08 5 )            

Wr ite‑offs -                             (2 7 4 )                    (8 3 )                       (3 )                          (6 ,3 1 2 )                 (8 5 6 )                    (3 ,1 09 )           -                          -                                -                                (1 0,6 3 7 )            

Tr a n sfer  to a v a ila ble for  sa le (iii) (5 0)                       (2 4 )                       (3 ,3 7 8 )          (3 ,4 5 2 )              

Tr a n sfer s fr om  (to) ta x es r ecov er a ble (ii) (1 ,9 2 9 )                 (1 ,9 2 9 )               

Tr a n sfer s -                             -                             8 ,5 6 5                  3 ,8 1 2                  2                           3 6 ,6 7 7               5 5                         3 ,4 4 9            (8 ,4 4 5 )              (2 5 ,8 9 1 )                 (1 8 ,2 2 4 )                 -                           

Depr ecia t ion (2 6 0,8 5 3 )           (2 2 ,001 )              (2 0,6 5 7 )              (1 ,5 7 2 )                 (8 4 ,07 4 )              (1 ,9 6 9 )                 (8 ,2 5 1 )           (1 9 0,3 8 9 )         -                                -                                (5 8 9 ,7 6 6 )         

A t  Decem ber 31, 2020  4,421                    1,041,385           269,816               292,766               3,762                   577,075              18,573                 34,385           55,040              13,702                    3,785                      2,311,257          

Tota l cost 4 ,4 2 1                  2 ,3 09 ,6 8 4         3 7 6 ,3 2 3             4 3 1 ,9 2 8             2 1 ,01 4                1 ,2 02 ,05 6         3 1 ,2 6 4                1 5 5 ,4 8 5       8 3 0,6 2 1          1 3 ,7 02                   3 ,7 8 5                     5 ,3 7 6 ,8 3 1       

A ccu m u la ted depr ecia t ion (1 ,2 6 8 ,2 9 9 )       (1 06 ,5 07 )           (1 3 9 ,1 6 2 )            (1 7 ,2 5 1 )              (6 2 4 ,9 8 1 )           (1 2 ,6 9 1 )              (1 2 1 ,1 00)      (7 7 5 ,5 8 1 )         -                                -                                (3 ,06 5 ,5 7 4 )     

Residu a l v a lu e 4,421                    1,041,385           269,816               292,766               3,762                   577,075              18,573                 34,385           55,040              13,702                    3,785                      2,311,257          

A n n u a l depr ecia t ion  r a te - % 1 7 % 5 % 4 % 1 9 % 8 % 1 6 % 2 0% -                          
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14.2 Consolidated 

 

 

 

Fu rnit u re a nd

Bu ildings, IT  a nd fit t ings,

Bea rer prem ises a nd Indu st ria l com m u nica t ion Ma ch inery  a nd dev ices Int ercrop Const ru ct ion in  A dv a nces T ot a l

La nd pla nt s im prov em ent s fa cilit ies equ ipm ent equ ipm ent a nd t ools V eh icles m a int ena nce progress t o su ppliers PP&E

A t  Ja nu a ry  1, 2019 96,401                 900,579              255,055               299,840               5,312                         694,067               22,520                 52,634           38,136               24,160                    10,394                      2,399,099               

A ddit ion s (v ) 3 09                      4 05 ,009             2 5 ,3 8 6                1 ,6 9 7                   2 ,2 6 4                       3 1 ,5 5 9                1 ,6 1 1                   7 ,9 5 5            1 7 1 ,8 6 4           7 5 ,4 04                   1 6 ,6 6 0                    7 3 9 ,7 1 8                  

Wr ite‑offs (1 )                          -                             (8 3 )                       (1 8 7 )                     (6 7 )                            (8 ,3 2 2 )                 (1 ,2 5 6 )                 (2 ,7 8 6 )           (2 )                       -                                -                                 (1 2 ,7 04 )                   

Wr ite-offs du e to split-off (iv ) (1 2 ,9 2 7 )              (4 2 )                       (9 1 6 )                     (2 )                          (1 3 ,8 8 7 )                   

Tr a n sfer s fr om  (to) ta x es r ecov er a ble (ii) -                             -                             -                             -                             -                                  (8 9 2 )                     -                             -                       -                          -                                -                                 (8 9 2 )                         

Tr a n sfer s 2 ,8 1 3                   (0)                          7 ,5 8 2                  4 6 ,03 4                1 1 8                            4 4 ,4 1 7                4 2 5                      6 ,6 1 8             6 ,006                (8 7 ,8 00)                 (2 6 ,2 1 3 )                   -                                 

Depr ecia t ion -                             (2 8 6 ,4 8 4 )           (1 9 ,3 1 8 )               (1 9 ,2 1 9 )               (2 ,5 3 8 )                     (1 00,08 7 )            (2 ,2 6 0)                 (1 8 ,1 7 4 )         (1 7 1 ,9 8 3 )         -                                -                                 (6 2 0,06 3 )                

A t  Decem ber 31, 2019  86,595                 1,019,104            268,622               328,123               5,089                        659,826               21,038                 46,247           44,021               11,764                     841                            2,491,271                

Tota l cost 8 6 ,5 9 4                2 ,1 8 9 ,6 3 3         3 7 1 ,7 07             4 5 0,1 8 7             2 3 ,4 4 1                     1 ,3 1 8 ,6 09          3 3 ,8 5 5                1 8 5 ,9 6 1        6 04 ,07 3          1 1 ,7 6 4                   8 4 1                           5 ,2 7 6 ,6 6 7             

A ccu m u la ted depr ecia t ion -                             (1 ,1 7 0,5 2 9 )        (1 03 ,08 5 )            (1 2 2 ,06 4 )            (1 8 ,3 5 2 )                   (6 5 8 ,7 8 2 )           (1 2 ,8 1 7 )               (1 3 9 ,7 1 4 )      (5 6 0,05 2 )         -                                -                                 (2 ,7 8 5 ,3 9 6 )            

Residu a l v a lu e 86,594                 1,019,104            268,622               328,123               5,089                        659,826               21,038                 46,247           44,021               11,764                     841                            2,491,271                

A t  Ja nu a ry  1, 2020 86,594                 1,019,104            268,622               328,123               5,089                        659,826               21,038                 46,247           44,021               11,764                     841                            2,491,271                

A ddit ion s 3 7 4 ,4 3 5             2 7 ,4 8 2                7 2 1                       9 5 5                           3 2 ,1 1 4                2 ,9 5 9                  4 ,4 3 1             2 4 1 ,7 9 0           3 6 ,7 01                   2 3 ,6 2 1                    7 4 5 ,2 09                 

Pa y m en t  of ca pita l in  a ssocia te (v i) (8 1 ,08 5 )              (8 1 ,08 5 )                   

Wr ite‑offs -                             -                             (2 7 4 )                     (8 8 )                       (1 1 )                             (7 ,3 7 8 )                 (8 5 6 )                     (3 ,2 6 0)           (1 1 ,8 6 7 )                   

Tr a n sfer  to a v a ila ble for  sa le (iii) (5 0)                       (2 4 )                       (3 ,3 7 8 )           (3 ,4 5 2 )                     

Tr a n sfer s fr om  (to) ta x es r ecov er a ble (ii) (1 ,9 2 9 )                 (1 ,9 2 9 )                     

Tr a n sfer s (7 )                          8 ,9 08                  7 ,5 4 7                  2 7 5                           4 0,9 4 0                5 8                         3 ,8 5 1             (8 ,6 3 9 )              (3 2 ,2 6 3 )                 (2 0,6 7 0)                  -                                 

Depr ecia t ion (2 7 8 ,03 1 )            (2 2 ,6 03 )              (2 2 ,2 9 9 )              (1 ,8 01 )                      (9 4 ,1 7 9 )              (2 ,2 4 6 )                 (1 0,6 3 8 )        (2 1 0,7 2 1 )         -                                -                                 (6 4 2 ,5 1 8 )                

A t  Decem ber 31, 2020  5,509                   1,115,501            282,135               314,004               4,507                        629,344               20,929                 37,253           66,451               16,202                    3,792                        2,495,629                

Tota l cost 5 ,5 09                  2 ,5 6 4 ,06 1         4 07 ,8 2 3             4 5 8 ,3 6 7             2 4 ,6 6 0                    1 ,3 8 2 ,3 06         3 5 ,9 9 2                1 8 7 ,6 05       8 3 7 ,2 2 4          1 6 ,2 02                   3 ,7 9 2                       5 ,9 2 3 ,5 4 3             

A ccu m u la ted depr ecia t ion (1 ,4 4 8 ,5 6 0)        (1 2 5 ,6 8 8 )            (1 4 4 ,3 6 3 )            (2 0,1 5 3 )                   (7 5 2 ,9 6 1 )            (1 5 ,06 3 )              (1 5 0,3 5 2 )      (7 7 0,7 7 3 )         -                                -                                 (3 ,4 2 7 ,9 1 4 )            

Residu a l v a lu e 5,509                   1,115,501            282,135               314,004               4,507                        629,344               20,929                 37,253           66,451               16,202                    3,792                        2,495,629                

A n n u a l depr ecia t ion  r a te - % 1 7 % 6 % 4 % 1 9 % 9 % 1 5 % 2 0%
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14.2 Information on property, plant and equipment 
  
(i) At December 31, 2020 and 2019, construction in progress and advances to suppliers refer to the 

expansion of the production capacity and the purchase of new equipment and machinery and renovation 
of the Company's and its subsidiaries' industrial units; 

 
(ii) In 2020, management reclassified to the acquisition cost of property, plant and equipment the amount of 

R$ 1,929 (2019 - R$ 892) as "Taxes recoverable", corresponding to the ICMS credits on the assets utilized 
in the manufacturing of the products not covered by the tax benefit of the presumed credit, in proportion 
to sales; 
 

(iii) Depreciation expenses that affected profit or loss were considered in the following accounts: "Industrial 
production costs, selling and administrative expenses" (Note 31).  

 
(iv) In January 2019, the Company sold its investee "Q065" and wrote off Fazenda Alto Alegre in the amount 

of R$ 12,927. 
 
(v) Following the adoption of CPC 06 R2, the costs of the bearer plants now include depreciation of the right-

of-use and the capitalization of interest on agricultural partnership agreements, exclusively for the 
expenses incurred during the period of crop formation, in cases of both expansion and renewal. 

 
(vi) On October 29, 2020, the Company subscribed capital of R$ 81,085 in AAP, currently an associate of the 

Company, with land. The Company's interest was then subsequently reduced by assigning the investment 
in AAP to its Parent company ABP (Note 13.2 (vi)).  
 
 

15 Intangible assets  
 
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized based on the costs incurred to purchase and bring to 
use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives of five years. 

 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are charged to expenses as incurred. 
 
The goodwill (R$ 8,089) of the Company is based on expected future profitability, justified by the 
installation of the Ivinhema plant; amortization began for tax purposes from May 2013, after the 
beginning of production.  
 
The UMA goodwill (R$ 5,604) is based on expected future profitability. It was being amortized up to 
December 31, 2008 and, since then is no longer amortized in the accounting records being only amortized 
for tax purposes limited to the amount of the tax benefit.   

 
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, to confirm that the carrying amount is recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its recoverable amount and 
is deducted from cost. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company and UMA recorded no impairment 
losses. 
 
On September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company carried out impairment testing of goodwill and found  
that it was impaired. 
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The acquisition costs of trademarks and patents are capitalized and not amortized. 
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows (Cash-Generating Units (CGUs)). The Company and its subsidiaries 
have three Cash Generating Units (CGU): (i) Angélica and Ivinhema industrial facilities owned by the 
Company; (ii) the industrial facility owned by the subsidiary Usina Monte Alegre Ltda.; and (iii) the 
industrial facility owned by AEN.  
 
The Company and its subsidiaries apply the value-in-use model for impairment testing of the CGUs of 
AVI, UMA and AEN, when applicable. 
 
The main assumptions and estimates involved are the sales price of products (sugar, ethanol and 
electricity), related costs and other production and market data.  
 
The main assumptions used by the Company and its subsidiaries are described below: 
 

 

Cash generating units

Perpetuity 

nominal growth 

rate

Nominal 

discount 

rate

Monte Alegre plant 0.5% 6.57 %

Angelica and Iv inhema plants 0.5% 6.57 %
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(i) The Company and UMA incurred expenses for the certification of their products with process control 
authorities. These were mostly paid to Certificadora Bonsucro. In the particular case of UMA, expenses 
were also incurred for the Digital Certificate of organic sugar. Expense amortization is recorded over the 
life of the respective product certificates. 
  

Parent 

company

Goodwill

Software 

licenses

Certification 

(i) Total

At January 1, 2019 8,089             9,1 7 0               26                       1 7 ,285               

Additions -                  5,7 7 6               21 2                     5,988                  

Amortization (3,049)             (87 )                      (3 ,1 37 )                

At December 31, 2019 8,089             1 1 ,896            1 51                      20,1 36               

Cost 8,089             2 4 ,9 8 9            3 4 3                     33,421               

Accumulated amortization (1 3 ,09 3 )          (1 9 2 )                   (1 3 ,2 8 5 )             

Net book v alue 8,089             1 1 ,896            1 51                      20,1 36               

At January 1, 2020 8,089             1 1 ,896            1 51                      20,1 36               

Additions 3,427              1 7 1                     3 ,598                  

Write‑offs (1 89)                   (1 89)                    

Amortization (2,653)             (82)                      (2,7 35)                

At December 31, 2020 1 6,1 7 8           24,566            201                     20,809               

Cost 8,089             2 8 ,4 1 6            3 2 5                     3 6 ,8 2 9               

Accumulated amortization -                       (1 5 ,7 4 6 )          (2 7 4 )                   (1 6 ,02 0)             

Net book v alue 8,089             1 2,67 0            50                        20,809               

Trademarks Goodwill

Software 

licenses

Certification 

(i) Total

At January 1, 2019 35                   1 3 ,693          9,41 9               232                     23 ,37 9               

Additions -                       -                       5,805               457                     6,262                 

Write‑offs (22)                 (1 )                      (23)                      

Amortization -                       -                       (3 ,1 80)             (388)                   (3 ,569)                

Net book v alue 1 3                   1 3 ,693          1 2,042            301                     26,049               

At December 31, 2019 1 3                   1 3 ,693          1 2,042            301                     26,049               

Cost                     1 3  1 3 ,693          26,530                              1 ,027  41 ,263               

Accumulated amortization (1 4,488)          (7 26)                   (1 5,21 4)              

Net book v alue 1 3                   1 3 ,693          1 2,042            301                     26,049               

A t  Ja nu a ry  1, 2020                     1 3  1 3 ,693          1 2,042                                  301  26,049               

Additions 3,501               363                     3 ,864                 

Write‑offs -                         (207 )                   (207 )                    

Amortization (2,7 25)             (31 3)                   (3 ,038)                

Net book v alue 1 3                   1 3 ,693          1 2,81 8            1 43                     26,667               

At December 31, 2020 1 3                   1 3 ,693          1 2,81 8            1 43                     26,667               

Cost                     1 3  1 3 ,693          30,031                               1 ,1 83                 44,91 9 

Accumulated amortization (1 7 ,21 3)           (1 ,039)               (1 8,252)              

Net book v alue 1 3                   1 3 ,693          1 2,81 8            1 43                     26,667               

Consolidated 
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16 Right-of-use 
 
At January 1, 2019, the right-of-use assets were recorded to correspond to the present value of the lease 
obligations assumed including, if any, existing prepaid at December 31, 2018. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any amortization and/or 
impairment losses, plus any lease liability adjustments as provided for in the lease agreements.  
 
Depreciation of the right-of-use assets is based on the straight-line method, over the terms of the 
contracts, on average, 10 years. For remeasurements, changes to depreciation are recorded prospectively. 
 

16.1 Changes in the balances 
 
The changes in right-of-use balances are as follows: 
 

 
 

 
(i) Refer to contracts under the Land Bylaws classified as Agricultural Partnership, which although not 

formal leases were included because they meet the conditions provided for in CPC 06 (R2) Leases; 
 

(ii) Refer to the lease of real estate, machinery, equipment and vehicles.

2019

Agricultural 

partnership (i)
Leases (ii) T otal

Agricultural 

partnership 

(i)

Leases (i) T otal

Opening balance - right-of-use 813,17 1                  59,884             87 3,055    684,7 04           28,012              7 12,7 16    

Addition/ remeasurement 236,57 5                 58,532             295,107    256,57 3           55,158              311 ,7 31     

Write‑offs (4,563)                     (19,000)          (23,563)     

Depreciation (141,131)                 (28,598)           (169,7 29)   (128,106)          (23,285)            (151,392)   

Closing balance - right-of-use 904,052                 7 0,818            97 4,87 0   813,17 1            59,884              87 3,055    

Controladora

2020

2019

Agricultural 

partnership 

(i)

Leases (ii) T otal
Agricultural 

partnership (i)
Leases (i) T otal

Opening balance - right-of-use 867 ,655           62,484             930,139       7 36,7 31                28,489             7 65,219     

Addition/ remeasurement 257 ,883           64,7 89            322,67 2       27 2,833                58,266             331,100     

Write‑offs (4,924)               (19,000)          (23,924)        

Depreciation (156,7 7 2)          (30,538)           (187 ,310)      (141,910)               (24,269)           (166,17 9)   

Closing balance - right-of-use 963,842            7 7 ,7 35            1 ,041,57 7   867 ,654                62,486             930,140    

Consolidated

2020
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16.2 Depreciation charge on right-of-use leased assets 
 
The statement of income includes the following amounts relating to leases: 
 

 
 

(i) Included in depreciation expense of agricultural partnership, is an amount for bearer plants recognized in 
property, plant and equipment, of which R$ 12,357 (2019 - R$ 18,408) relates to the Company and 1,640 
(2019 - R$ 945) to UMA. 
 
 

17 Lease liabilities 
 
The flows of future payments of lease transactions are recognized in liabilities and in right-of-use leased 
asset for all contracts with lease characteristics, with exemption permitted for short-term or low-value 
contracts. 
 
Upon initial adoption of the standard, the Company recognized lease liabilities for contracts that meet the 
definition of lease established by CPC 06 (R2).  The liabilities were measured at the present value of the 
remaining payments of contracts with lease characteristics, discounted based on the incremental discount 
rate. Assets associated with the right of use were measured at the amount equal to the lease liability at 
January 1, 2019, with no impact on retained earnings. For contracts with advance payments, these 
amounts were included as part of the right of use. 
 
The Company adopted the following assumptions: 
 

a) The use of a uniform incremental discount rate for contracts with similar characteristics and terms; 
 
b) Exemption for contracts with maturities within 12 months or less than US$ 20 thousand, which will be 

accounted for directly in profit or loss; 
 
c)  Remeasurement based on an index or a ratio will be made in accordance with a specific provision in the 

related contracts. As regards agricultural partnership, remeasurement will be made annually, always at 
the end of each year/crop; 

 
d)  Reclassification on January 1, 2019, of advances made to the beneficiaries of the lease (CPC 06 R2) from 

other liabilities to right-of-use assets, referring to existing balances at December 31, 2018. 
 
e)  Option to use the practical expedient introduced by the standard.

2020 2019 2020 2019

At January  1 1 51 ,391                1 66,1 7 9          

Agricultural partnership (i) 1 41 ,1 31                1 28,1 06          1 56,7 7 2          1 41 ,91 0           

Leases 28,598                 23,285            30,538            24,269             

At December 31 321 ,1 20               1 51 ,391          353,489          1 66,1 7 9           

Parent company Consolidated 
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17.1 Balances recorded in the balance sheet  
 
The Company recognized lease liabilities for contracts in force that were previously classified as operating 
leases upon adoption of CPC 06 - Leases, except for those contracts that fall under the practical expedient 
clauses which were adopted by the Company. 
 
Liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 correspond to the remaining balances of the lease agreements 
discounted to present value at the incremental discount rate (Note 17.3). 
 

17.2 Changes in the balances 
 
The changes in lease liabilities were as follows: 
 

 
 

(i) A portion of the amount related to adjustment to present value refers to the recognition of bearer plants 
in property, plant and equipment, of which R$ 907 (2019 - R$ 7,667) relates to the Company and R$ 111 
(2019 - R$ 630) to UMA. 
 
Contracts classified as lease liabilities mature as follows: 
 

 
 
 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019

Opening balance - lease liabilities 7 89,21 0               61 1 ,082          840,928         657 ,321           

Addition/ remeasurement 295,1 07               31 1 ,7 31          322,67 1          331 ,1 00           

Write‑offs (23,563)                (23,929)          

Pay ments (207 ,968)             (1 65,996)        (226,426)        (1 82,1 37 )         

Adjustment to present v alue (i) 41 ,035                  32,393            43,938            34,644             

Closing balance of lease liabilities 893,821               7 89,21 0         957 ,1 82          840,928          

Current 1 42,599               1 39,652          1 59,7 41          1 52,065           

Non-current 7 51 ,222               649,558          7 97 ,441          688,863          

Parent company Consolidated 

2020 2019 2020 2019

Up to 1  y ear 1 42,599               1 39,652          1 59,7 41          1 52,065           

From 1  to 2 y ears 81 ,884                 1 64,026         89,408            1 7 5,496           

From 2 to 3  y ears 1 38,37 4               1 01 ,431          1 51 ,51 0           1 1 0,51 7           

From 3 to 4 y ears 1 1 1 ,606               7 9,482            1 22,609          86,407             

From 4 to 5 y ears 96,254                 68,604            1 02,07 6          7 2,946             

From 5 to 6 y ears 7 5,896                 56,365            7 9,940            58,651              

From 6 to 7  y ears 59,423                 43,1 63            61 ,7 97            44,426             

From 7  to 8 y ears 43,097                 32,203            44,37 5            32,984             

Ov er 8 y ears 1 44,688               1 04,284         1 45,7 27          1 07 ,436          

893,821               7 89,21 0         957 ,1 82          840,928          

Parent company Consolidated 
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17.3 Incremental discount rate 
  
 The Company and its subsidiaries adopted an incremental discount rate applied to lease liabilities with 

reasonably similar characteristics and terms. Rates are based on quotes of loans with financial 
institutions.  

  
On the date of initial adoption, the rate of 110% of the CDI rate was used, adjusted for contracts with 
similar terms. For new or amended contracts  in 2020 and 2019, the bank loan rate of the Agribusiness 
Receivable Certificate (CRA) contracted by the Company was used, index adjusted by IPCA rate of the 
month of addition plus the spread of 3.80% p.a., and adjusted to contracts with similar terms. 
 
 

18 Borrowings  
 

 
  

Current annual charges

Type Rate Index 2020 2019 2020 2019

Ty pe

In local currency

National Bank for Economic and Social Dev elopment (BNDES) - 

   Gov ernment Agency  for Machinery  and Equipment Financing 

(FINAME)

2.50%

7 ,1 66                   1 0,7 28           7 ,1 66              1 0,7 28        

BNDES - FINAME 2.59% -                        -                   1 ,27 9              1 ,957           

BNDES - Enterprise Financing (FINEM) 3.7 3% + Long-term Interest Rate (TJLP) 2,7 54                   6,508              2 ,7 54              6,508           

BNDES - Enterprise Financing (FINEM) 2.50% 80,839                1 1 9,634         80,839           1 1 9,634      

Bank Credit Notes (CCB) 1 .61 % +Interbank Deposit Certificate (CDI) -                        -                   20,61 3            -                

Bank Credit Notes (CCB) 2.95% +Interbank Deposit Certificate (CDI) -                        -                   1 5,382            -                

Bank Credit Notes (CCB) 2.32% +Interbank Deposit Certificate (CDI) -                        -                   30,005            -                

Federal gov ernment debt - PESA 4.48% -                        -                   -                   83                 

Constitutional Fund for Financing of the Center West (FCO) 2.50% 36,7 93                54,066           36,7 93           54,066        

Rural Product Note (CPR) 1 .00% +Interbank Deposit Certificate (CDI) -                        -                   -                   1 5,1 29         

Rural Product Note (CPR) 0.7 0% +Interbank Deposit Certificate (CDI) -                        -                   -                   25,641        

Agribusiness Receiv ables Certificate (CRA) (ii)  3 .80% +Amplified Consumer Price Index (IPCA) 41 3,1 95              394,004        41 3 ,1 95          394,004     

Debentures 4.24% +Amplified Consumer Price Index (IPCA) 392,57 6             -                   392,57 6         -                

Export Credit Note (NCE) 2.20% +Interbank Deposit Certificate (CDI) 7 4,884                -                   7 4,884           -                

Bank credit balances 0.00% -                        -                   6                       1 6                 

Total in local currency   1 ,008,207         584,940         1 ,07 5,492     627 ,7 66     

In foreign currency

Adv ance on exchange contract (ACC) 3.68% Foreign exchange gain/loss -                        -                   -                   8,1 47           

Export prepay ment 6.7 7 % Foreign exchange gain/loss 392,97 9             303,805         392,97 9         303,805     

Export prepay ment - related parties 7 .90% Foreign exchange gain/loss 882,636             684,891         966,321         7 51 ,993      

Export prepay ment - related parties 7 .95% Foreign exchange gain/loss 840,537             7 48,7 48        840,537         7 48,7 48     

Guarantee account for brokers 4.00% 1 -Week Libor/ Foreign exchange gain/loss -                        1                       -                   1                    

Guarantee account for brokers 3.25% Ov ernight Libor/ Foreign exchange gain/loss -                        1 1 ,1 1 3            -                   1 1 ,1 1 3         

BNDES - FINEM (Basket of currencies) 8.7 5% Foreign exchange gain/loss 1 4,249                1 6,688           1 4,249            1 6,688        

Total in foreign currency    2 ,1 30,401          1 ,7 65,246     2 ,21 4,086     1 ,840,495  

Total borrowings 3,1 38,608         2 ,350,1 86     3 ,289,57 8     2 ,468,261 

Current (284,47 6)           (1 1 7 ,240)       (308,01 2)       (1 43,590)   

Non-current 2,854,1 32          2 ,232,944    2 ,981 ,566     2 ,324,67 0 

Parent company Consolidated
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The changes in debt were as follows: 
 

 
 
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently 
carried at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the total 
amount payable is recognized in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective interest rate method. 
 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities if payment is due in one year or less. Otherwise, they are 
presented in non-current liabilities. 
 
Borrowing costs directly related to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that 
requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the 
cost of that asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and costs can be measured reliably. The other borrowing costs are recognized as finance 
costs in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Borrowings classified in non-current liabilities fall due as follows: 
 
 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019

Prev ious balance 2,350,1 84          2 ,1 98,643     2 ,468,260           2 ,31 2,656  

New borrowings 668,395             537 ,435         7 7 7 ,548               609,234     

Repay ment of principal (37 4,004)           (449,808)      (47 3,7 1 0)             (521 ,382)   

Pay ment of interest (1 87 ,1 90)           (1 54,657 )       (1 99,47 1 )             (1 65,87 3)   

Interest charged 1 90,006             1 51 ,856          202,323              1 62,667     

Transaction cost (8,528)                (6,009)           (8,528)                  (6,009)        

Escrow deposit 236                      403                  236                        403              

Foreign exchange gain/loss 499,509             7 2,323           522,920               7 6,565        

3 ,1 38,608         2 ,350,1 86     3 ,289,57 8           2 ,468,261 

Parent company Consolidated
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(i) The borrowings raised by the Company and its subsidiaries guaranteed by property, plant and equipment 
total R$ 150,322 (2019 - R$ 218,040), sugar export contracts and sureties of Group companies and of the 
officers. 
 
At December 31, 2020, certain financing agreements require the Company to comply with financial 
covenants at the end of each year, under penalty of accelerating maturities at the discretion of the 
creditors. All covenants were being complied with at December 31, 2020 and 2019.  
 

(ii) In 2019, the Company initiated a new fund raising arrangement through the capital markets, with the 
issue of Agribusiness Receivable Certificates (CRA) for distribution by means of a continuous offering, in 
the amount of R$ 400,000, which was completed in December 2019. These accrue annual interest 
equivalent to 3.80% plus inflation adjustments (IPCA); amortization of the principal is due in two equal 
installments in November 2026 and 2027.  
 

(iii) In 2017, the Company and UMA entered into an export prepayment financing transaction with its parent 
company Adecoagro S.A.; interest is payable semi-annually and the principal amount on the maturity of 
the contract or on a prepayment basis, as detailed below:  

 
  

Parent company Consolidated

2020 2019 2020 2019

-                        -                   

2021 -                        362,534         -                   388,1 89     

2022 37 2,838             696,450         388,47 1         697 ,096     

2023 804,480             1 1 4,47 1         81 9,480         1 1 4,47 1      

2024 1 31 ,655              660,462        228,457         7 25,888     

2025 1 32,524              1 32,524         -                

2026 858,951              399,027        858,951          399,027     

2027 553,683              553,683         -                
-                   -                

Non-current 2,854,1 31 2,232,944 2,981 ,566 2,324,67 0

Export prepay ments 291 ,800 301 ,1 53 291 ,800         301 ,1 53

Export prepay ment - related parties (iii) 1 ,684,245 1 ,399,953 1 ,7 66,046     1 ,465,37 9

BNDES - FINAME (i) 3 ,547 7 ,1 58 4,1 80              8,458

BNDES - FINEM (i) 50,220 95,07 9 50,220            95,07 9

Agribusiness Receiv ables Certificate (CRA) (ii) 41 3,1 97 394,1 04 41 3,1 97         394,1 04

Constitutional Fund for Financing of the Center West (FCO) 1 7 ,57 0 35,498 1 7 ,57 0            35,498

Working capital in Reais 0 45,000            25,000

Debentures (iv ) 393,553 393,553

Non-current 2,854,1 32 2,232,944 2,981 ,566 2,324,67 0
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(iv) During 2020, the Company began a new fund raising arrangement through the capital markets, with 
the issue of debentures placed through public offerings with restricted efforts, of R$ 400,000, 
completed in December 2019. The funds raised will accrue semiannual interest of 4.24% p.a. plus 
inflation adjustments (IPCA) to be paid every six months; amortization of the principal in three equal 
installments in December 2024, December 2025 and December 2026.  

 
 

19 Salaries and social charges  
 

 
  

Consolidated

Agreement 

date Date of release of funds

Maturity date 

of principal 

amount

Position in 

U.S. Dollars 

at 12/31/2019

Position in 

U.S. Dollars 

at 

12/31/2020

Company 9/1 9/201 7 9/22/201 7 9/1 3/2024 1 69,91 8,242 1 69,845,37 8

Company 9/26/201 7 1 0/2/201 7 9/1 5/2023 1 30,322,324 1 30,266,093

Company 1 0/25/201 7 1 1 /1 /201 7 9/1 5/2022 55,438,91 3 31 ,47 8,27 5

UMA 9/1 9/201 7 9/22/201 7 9/1 3/2024 1 6,648,030 1 6,1 03,67 6

37 2,327 ,509 347 ,693,422

2020 2019 2020 2019

Salaries and wages pay able                     20,930                21 ,500             23,41 6            23,7 38 

Prov ision for v acation pay  and related charges                     24,032                24,263             28,7 50             29,81 0 

Pay roll charges                        5,7 90                   5,925               6,652               6,823 

Profit sharing                      1 7 ,1 52                1 1 ,328            20,047              1 4,7 52 

Other charges                            208                      263                   27 7                    328 

                     68,1 1 2                63,27 9             7 9,1 42             7 5,451  

Parent company Consolidated 
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20 Taxes payable  
 

 
 

(i) The Company and UMA are responsible for the payment of the social security contributions to the Rural 
Workers' Assistance Fund (FUNRURAL), which is levied on the purchases of sugar cane from individual 
rural producers;  the tax withholding was suspended based on a restraining order in the period from July 
2010 to March 2017. 
 
In 2017, after the Federal Supreme Court issued a decision related to Appeal 718,874/RS-RG recognizing 
the constitutionality of the collection of FUNRURAL, the Company resumed the tax withholding 
procedure in March 2017, and enrolled in the program for payment in installments of tax obligations to 
the Brazilian Federal Revenue Service (RFB) (Special Program for Settlement of Rural Tax Debt (PRR)) 
under Law 13,606/18, in order to settle outstanding amounts.  
 
The Company is awaiting the consolidation by the RFB of the payments in installments of the obligation 
due FUNRURAL. 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019

National Institute of 

Social Security  (INSS)            6,033           5,022                6,630                5,863 

Value-added Tax on Sales and                        -                          -   

Serv ices (ICMS)                     -             2 ,094                1 ,7 83                4,508 

Corporate Income Tax (IRPJ) and                        -                          -   

Social Contribution on Net Income (CSLL)                    652                    47 9 

 Social Integration Program (PIS) and Social Contribution on Rev enues (COFINS)            4,846           5,826                5,1 00                7 ,049 

Special Program for Settlement of Rural Tax Debt (PRR) (i)            6,7 67            6,7 67                 7 ,681                 7 ,661  

Serv ices Tax (ISS)                638               51 7                     638                    523 

Withholding Social Contributions (CSRF)                339               231                     339                    231  

State funds pay able            1 ,236           1 ,1 44                2 ,1 95                1 ,1 44 

Other                 591                1 90                    644                    1 99 

         20,450         21 ,7 91              25,662             27 ,658 

Parent company Consolidated 
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21 Provision for contingencies  
 

21.1 Composition of contingencies 
 

The Company and its subsidiaries had the following liabilities and corresponding judicial deposits, 
related to contingencies: 
 

 
 

Parent 

company

Labor and social 

security Civil Environmental

(-) Judicial 

deposits Total

At January  1 , 2020 6,554                      1 ,944  -                                (1 ,691 )                 6,807                

Additions 3,31 1                      41 9      5                               (43)                       3 ,692                

Unused amounts rev ersed (1 ,457 )                    (1 2)       -                                341                       (1 ,1 28)               

Used during the y ear (1 ,1 31 )                     (320)    -                                7                            (1 ,444)               

At December 31 , 2020 7 ,27 7                     2 ,031  5                               (1 ,386)                 7 ,927                

0
At January  1 , 201 9 7 ,235                      2 ,044 (2,662)                 6,61 7                

Additions 1 ,327                      1 49      (332)                     1 ,1 44                 

Unused amounts rev ersed (1 ,903)                    (1 29)    1 ,261                   (7 7 1 )                   

Used during the y ear (1 05)                        (1 20)    42                         (1 83)                   

At December 31 , 201 9 6,554                      1 ,944  (1 ,691 )                 6,807                

Consolidated

Labor and social 

security Civil Environmental

(-) Judicial 

deposits Total

At January  1 , 2020 1 0,1 84                   1 ,958  (1 ,920)                 1 0,222              

Additions 4,258                      440     5                               (1 09)                     4,594                

Unused amounts rev ersed (1 ,508)                    (1 2)       -                                381                       (1 ,1 39)               

Used during the y ear (2,258)                    (320)    -                                64                         (2,51 4)               

At December 31 , 2020 1 0,67 6                   2 ,066 5                               (1 ,584)                 1 1 ,1 63              

At January  1 , 201 9 1 0,594                   2 ,409 1 ,1 7 3                      (2,885)                 1 1 ,291              

Additions 1 ,829                      1 7 4      39                            (448)                     1 ,594                 

Unused amounts rev ersed (2,1 34)                    (506)    (1 ,21 2)                     1 ,261                   (2,591 )               

Used during the y ear (1 05)                        (1 1 9)    -                                1 52                       (7 2)                     

At December 31 , 201 9 1 0,1 84                   1 ,958  0                               (1 ,920)                 1 0,222              
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21.2 Nature of contingencies 
 

The Company and its subsidiaries are a party to tax, labor, civil and environmental proceedings, and are 
discussing such matters at the administrative and judicial levels. The provisions for probable risk of losses 
for these proceedings are estimated and periodically updated by management, under the advice of 
external legal counsel. 
 
The nature of the contingencies are as follows: 
 
Tax: refer to State (ICMS) and Federal (disallowance of federal tax credits) proceedings; 
 
Labor and social security: mainly refer to employee claims and inspections by the Ministry of Labor; 
 
Civil: mainly refer to indemnity claims; and 
 
Environmental: mainly relate to environmental licenses for a certain agricultural property. 
 

21.3 Contingent liabilities 
 

(a) Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 
At December 31, 2020, the Company was a party to tax, civil and labor litigation amounting to R$ 325,351 
(2019 - R$ 27,224), involving possible risks of loss as classified by management, based on the assessment 
of its legal counsel, and for which no provision was recorded. The main addition in 2020 refers to an 
assessment notice of R$ 290,014 related to the exclusion from IRPJ and CSLL calculation bases of the 
accelerated tax-incentive depreciation of rural activities, as provided for in article 6 of Provisional 
Measure 2,159-70/01, and article 325 of Income Tax Regulations (RIR)/18. 
 
Additionally, the Company has judicial deposits accruing interest/indexation of R$ 9,885 (2019 -           
R$ 8,778), recorded in non-current assets, of which R$ 6,999 (2019 - R$ 6,888) as guarantee for the legal 
proceedings with the National Electric Energy Agency (ANEEL) and R$ 158 (2019 - R$ 158) with the 
National Institute of Social Security (INSS) (referring to the payment of the Rural Workers' Assistance 
Fund (Funrural) on the purchases of sugar cane), and R$ 224 (2019 - R$ 129) referring to labor claims. 
 
 

(b) Usina Monte Alegre Ltda. 
 

At December 31, 2020, the subsidiary was a party to tax, civil and labor litigation amounting to R$ 43,269 
(2019 - R$ 46,223), involving possible risks of loss as classified by management, based on the assessment 
of its legal counsel, and for which no provision has been recorded. 
 
Also, the subsidiary has judicial deposits of R$ 1,486 (2019 - R$ 1,330), recorded in non-current assets, of 
which, R$ 84 (2019 - R$ 84) refers to tax proceedings and R$ 214 (2019 - R$ 257) to labor claims. 
 
  



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 

 
 
 

52 of 72 
 

 

22 Other liabilities  
 

 
 

(i) Advances from customers refer to amounts received by the Company and its subsidiaries for the future 
delivery of ethanol and sugar, with settlement scheduled for 2021 (2019 - ethanol and sugar were settled 
in 2020). 
 
 

23 Taxes on profit  
 

23.1 Deferred income tax and social contribution 
 
Deferred taxes are calculated on income tax and social contribution losses and on temporary differences 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The 
currently enacted tax rates of 25% for income tax and 9% for social contribution are used to calculate 
deferred taxes. 
 

 
  

Parent company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Adv ances from customers (i) 1 2,882      5,97 3         1 5,962       7 ,57 0         

Accounts pay able - labor claims 1 ,545          852             

Share-based compensation plan charges 1 ,7 54         1 ,589         1 ,855          1 ,682         

Other pay ables 1                  -              1                  498             

1 4,637      7 ,562         1 9,363      1 0,602      

Current (1 3,467 )     (6,504)       (1 6,61 8)     (8,653)       

Non-current 1 ,1 7 0         1 ,058         2 ,7 45         1 ,949         

Consolidated

2020 2019 2020 2019

Deferred tax assets                            -                             - 

Deferred tax assets to be 

  recov ered within 1 2 months               36,960                 68,488                40,957            80,57 0 

Deferred tax assets to be 

  recov ered after 1 2 months 486,325               307 ,945 509,660         320,458 

523,285 37 6,433 550,61 7 401 ,028

Deferred tax liabilities                            -                             - 

Deferred tax liabilities to be

  settled within 1 2 months             1 09,01 4                 7 5,97 7               1 1 4,852           90,941  

Deferred tax liabilities to be

  settled after 1 2 months 27 9,420               235,256 301 ,500         244,61 4 

388,434 31 1 ,233 41 6,352 335,555

Net balance of deferred tax assets 1 34,851                 65,200 1 34,265           65,47 3 

Parent company Consolidated 
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The changes in the net deferred tax account are as follows: 
 

 
 

23.2 Income tax and social contribution expense 
  

 
 

  

Parent company Consolidated 

2020 2019 2020 2019

Deferred tax assets on:

Income tax losses             1 63,489               1 63,489 1 7 1 ,1 65                      1 7 1 ,1 65 

Social contribution losses               59,637                  59,497  63,31 3                        63 ,1 7 2 

Loss on the calculation of the fair v alue of biological assets                 1 3 ,884 486                                1 7 ,945 

Losses on unsettled hedging transactions                  8,7 1 6                    1 ,599 8,7 1 6                              1 ,599 

Deemed cost of property , plant and equipment 1 ,1 09                 

Stock option premium                   5,1 7 1                     4,454 5,480                              4,7 1 6 

Prov ision for contingencies                  2 ,488                    2 ,889 3 ,656                              4,332 

Foreign exchange gain/loss - taxation on cash basis             254,286               1 04,489 264,827                   1 1 0,382 

Lease transactions                1 6,1 62                 1 0,07 8 1 6,995                         1 0,698 

Other temporary  differences               1 3 ,336                  1 6,055 1 4,87 0              1 7 ,01 8          

            523,285              37 6,433              550,61 7          401 ,028 

Deferred tax liabilities on:

Depreciation - difference in useful life               1 0,284                 1 0,960                1 0,7 89            1 1 ,57 2 

Accelerated tax-incentiv e depreciation             321 ,288               268,835             342,57 0        286,034 

Gain on the calculation of the fair v alue of biological assets               22,697                 22,697  

Rev aluation reserv e                  3 ,27 2 

Tax amortization of goodwill                  2 ,7 50                   4,655              1 ,905 

Deemed cost of property , plant and equipment                      330                      330              3 ,622 

Capitalized interest                31 ,085                 28,687                 31 ,989           29,57 8 

Other                    2 ,7 50                         50              2 ,843 

           388,434               31 1 ,233              41 6,352          335,555 

Deferred tax assets, net             1 34,851                  65,200              1 34,265           65,47 3 

2020 2019 2020 2019

Current tax                (2,7 57 )                              -                (4,508)            (2,395)

Deferred tax             (91 ,1 43) (8,294)                            (99,07 7 ) (1 2,850)        

Income tax and social contribution             (93,899)                 (8,294)            (1 03,585)          (1 5,245)

Parent company Consolidated 
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23.3 Reconciliation of the income tax and social contribution expense/benefit from the 
standard to the effective tax rates 

  

 
 

(i) In 2020, revenue from sales of CBIOS was excluded from tax pursuant to article 60 of Law 13,986/2020, 
as it is subject to exclusive taxation at source at the rate of 15%. In 2019, the capital gain on sales of 
subsidiaries was submitted to taxation at the ratio of 1/60 per month since September 2014. 

 
(ii) The Company carried out partial split-offs of its investments. It spun-off its investments in ACO in 

October 2019 and in AAB in December 2019. Both transactions reduced the Company's equity, which 
proportionally reduced its accumulated tax loss, in accordance with current legislation.  

 
(iii) The Company treated tax on CBIOS sales exclusively at source, at 15%, pursuant to Law 13,576/2017. 

  

Parent company

2019 2020 2019

Profit before income tax

and social contribution 428,07 0                241 ,860        437 ,7 57           248,81 1       

Maximum tax rate 34% 34% 34% 34%

(1 45,544)               (82,232)         (1 48,837 )         (84,596)       

Non-deductible expenses (1 ,326)                    (1 ,662)            (1 ,407 )               (1 ,7 83)          

Gov ernment grant and Reintegra 32,1 1 4 46,645 32,831              47 ,1 99         

Workers’ Meal Program 1 ,1 1 1 2,597 1 ,332                2 ,945            

Equity  in the results of inv estees 1 3 ,51 1 1 6,07 1

Research and dev elopment 2,600 3,488                445                

Non-taxed rev enue (i) 6,250                     1 1 ,859            6,833                1 1 ,859          

Deferred taxes on prior-y ear income tax

  and social contribution losses derecognized

  in the y ear (7 8)                

Write-off of tax credit - total split-off (ii) (1 ,837 )            (1 ,883)          

Adjustment in the calculation of subsidiary  taxed 

  based on the deemed profit 5,048                1 0,1 57          

Taxation exclusiv ely  at source (iii) (2,7 57 )                    (3 ,01 4)               

Other 1 42                         264                 1 40                    490               

Taxes on profit or loss (93,899)                 (8,294)            (1 03,585)          (1 5,245)        

Consolidated 

2020
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23.4 Estimated realization of deferred tax credits 
 

Deferred tax assets on income tax and social contribution losses are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to be utilized for offset, considering 
projections of future profitability for 10 years based on internal assumptions and future economic 
scenarios, which are, therefore, subject to changes. At December 31, 2020, management's expectation, 
based on projections of future taxable income, is that they will be realized as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 

Year                                                Parent company Consolidated

2021                                                              1 ,429                3 ,858                  

2022                                                           29,846             35,1 54                

2023                                                            21 ,257              24,87 2               

2024 to 2028                                      1 7 0,594           1 7 0,594             

223,1 26           234,47 8             
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24 Related parties 
 

24.1 Parent company  
 

 
  

2020 2019

Adecoagro 

Brasil 

Participações 

S.A.

Adeco 

Agropecuária 

Brasil Ltda.

Usina Monte 

Alegre Ltda.

Adecoagro 

Energia 

Ltda.

Adecoagro 

Uruguay 

S.A. Adecoagro S.A. Other (v) Total Total

Main balances

Current assets

Related parties - trade receiv ables (Note 8)                               - #                             - #                        35                2 ,1 58                   1 1 4                                  -                       -           2 ,307            2 ,983 

Receiv ables from related parties                            21  #                         28 #                 1 ,487                        55                         -                                  -                       -            1 ,591                699 

Related parties - div idends receiv able                               - #                             - #                           -             1 7 ,7 46                         -                                  -                       -         1 7 ,7 46           9,458 

                              - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       - 

Current liabilities                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       - 

Related parties - div idends pay able                  56,946 #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -         56,946         58,41 6 

Related parties - trade pay ables                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                  90 

Related parties - borrowings (Note 1 8)                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                     38,928                       -        38,928        33 ,684 
                              - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                      - 

Non-current liabilities                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                      - 

Related parties - borrowings (Note 1 8)                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -               1 ,684,245                       -  1 ,684,245  1 ,399,953 
                              - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                      - 

Main transactions                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                      - 
                              - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                      - 

Recov ery  of corporate expenses (i)                        1 80 #                       1 89 #              1 3 ,7 7 9                    529                         -                                  -                       -         1 4,67 7            8,225 

Sales rev enue (iii)                               - #                             - #                           -              1 6,7 31          7 22,41 8                                  -                       -      7 39,1 49      1 07 ,365 

Rev enues from sale of property , plant and equipment                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -               396 

Rev enues from sale of goods and materials                               - #                             - #                     27 6                          -                     1 2                                   -                       -               288                355 

Rev enues from lease of assets                               - #                             - #                           -                2 ,499                         -                                  -                       -           2 ,499            2 ,51 7  

Finance costs (iv )                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                (1 34,821 )                       -    (1 34,821 )    (1 1 6,621 )

Div idends receiv ed                9,458           9,458         30,1 00 

Div idends distributed               (83,506)      (83,506)      (28,250)

Share-based compensation plan                               - #                             - #                           -                         -                                  -          (5,040)         (5,040)         (7 ,600)

Purchases of assets for use and materials                               - #                             - #                     (1 9)                          -                         -                                  -              (232)             (251 )             (437 )

Commissions                               - #                             - #                           -                          -                         -                                  -                       -                      -         (1 ,030)
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24.2 Consolidated 
 

 
 

2020 2019

 Adecoagro Brasil 

Participações S/A 

Adeco 

Agropecuária 

Brasil Ltda.

 Adecoagro 

Uruguay S.A. Other (v) Total Total

Main balances

Current assets

Related parties - trade receiv ables (iii) (Note 8)                                    -    -                                 -                     1 ,289                       -   -              1 ,289           2 ,1 88                 

Receiv ables from related parties                                   21   -                               28                           -                         -   -              49                 55                        

                                   -    -                                 -                             -                         -   -                

Current liabilities                                    -    -                                 -                             -                         -   -                -                      

Related parties - trade pay ables                                    -    -                                 -                             -                         -   -              -                7 6                       

Related parties - div idends pay able                         56,946  -                                 -                             -                         -   56,946        83,506              

Related parties - borrowings (Note 1 8)                                    -    -                                 -                             -              40,81 3  40,81 3        35,362              

                                   -    -                                 -                             -                         -   -                

Non-current liabilities                                    -    -                                 -                             -                         -   -                -                      

Related parties - borrowings (Note 1 8)                                    -    -                                 -                             -       1 ,7 66,046 1 ,7 66,046 1 ,465,37 9        

                                   -    -                                 -                             -                         -   -                -                      

Main transactions                                    -    -                                 -                             -                         -   -                -                      

                                   -    -                                 -                             -                         -   
-                -                      

Sales rev enue                                    -    -                                 -               7 88,393                       -   7 88,393     1 40,1 87            

Rev enues from lease of assets                                    -    -                               48                           -                         -   48                 43                       

Rev enues from sale of goods and materials                                    -    -                                 -                           1 2                        -   1 2                 

Cost of purchase of raw materials                                    -    -    -                           -                         -    - (7 ,340)

Purchases of assets for use and materials                                    -    -   (1 4)                           -                         -   (232) (246)

Share-based compensation plan                                    -    -                                 -                             -                         -   (5,369) (5,369) (8,045)

Finance costs (iv )                                    -    -                                 -   -                      (1 41 ,344) (1 41 ,344) (1 23,1 58)

Purchases of sugar cane                                    -    -                                 -   -                       -  -  - (7 ,340)

Div idends distributed (83,506)  -                                 -   -                      -                  (83,506) (83,506)

Recov ery  of corporate expenses (i)                                1 80  -                             1 89 -                      -                  369 354

Commissions                                    -    -                                 -   -                      -                   -  - (1 ,030)

 Adecoagro 

S.A. 
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24.3 Other information 
  

(i) These reimbursements refer to the allocation of corporate, administrative and selling expenditures, 
including management remuneration, apportioned and charged by the Company to the other Group 
companies in Brazil (Note 1.2).  

 
(ii) At December 31, 2020, the parent company Adecoagro Brasil Participações S.A granted sureties to the 

Company, its subsidiaries and its parent company Adecoagro S.A. as a guarantee for borrowings, totaling 
R$ 3,275,290 (2019 - R$ 2,717,728) (Note 18).  

 
(iii) Adecoagro Uruguay S.A., a company of the Adecoagro Group located in Uruguay, performs certain 

transactions related to the export of commodities of various companies in Brazil, Argentina and Uruguay. 
In 2020 and 2019, these relate to the export of sugar by the Company and its subsidiaries. 

 
(iv) Finance costs correspond to the settlement of semiannual interest on borrowings obtained by the Company 

and its subsidiary UMA from Adecoagro S.A. as export prepayments, drawn down in 2017 (Note 18). 
 
(v) The related parties identified as "Other" correspond, basically, in the Company and its subsidiaries, to 

beneficiaries of share-based compensation plans that have some link with the Company or any other 
company of the Adecoagro Group in Brazil or abroad. 

 
24.4 Management compensation 

 
Senior management comprises the Company officers and key managers. In 2020, remuneration to key 
management personnel for services rendered includes salaries and social charges, bonuses, share-based 
compensation plan, which amounted to R$ 9,759 (2019 - R$ 6,176) and was paid by the Company. 

 
 

25 Future commitments 
 
At December 31, 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries had commitments to customers for the delivery of 
products scheduled for the 2020/2021 crop, at fixed prices, which will be accounted for on the physical 
delivery of the items, as presented below: 

 

 
 

  

Product Measurement unit 2020 2019 2020 2019

Sugar - VHP metric tons -             -              3 ,630        -             

Sugar - granulated metric tons 287            

Sugar - Organic metric tons 1 8               

Ethanol cubic meters 3,368        7 ,495         3 ,41 9        8,038        

Electricity Mwh 492,420   438,624   698,868   649,245   

Parent company Consolidated
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26 Equity 
 

26.1 Share capital 
 

At December 31, 2020, capital amounted to R$ 1,155,865 (2019 - R$ 1,335,865), divided into common 
shares, with no par value, held as follows: 
 

 
 
On October 29, 2020, the Company's capital was reduced by R$ 180,000, without cancellation of shares, 
with a capital return to the parent company Adecoagro Brasil Participações S.A. ("ABP"), by delivering 
quotas of the investee Adecoagro Agricultura e Participações Ltda. ("AAP"). AAP was incorporated in 
October 2020 with a contribution of assets and rights. 
 

27 Reserves 
 

27.1 Capital reserve  
 
(a)  Premium on restricted shares  

 

Refers to the stock option plan for restricted shares of Adecoagro S.A., the Group's parent company (Note 
1.2), in which the officers of the Company and its subsidiaries participate, which constitute an obligation of 
the parent company (Note 32). 
 

27.2 Revenue reserve  
 
(a) Tax incentive reserve - Subsidies 

 
The tax incentive benefits recorded in "Investment Subsidies" as per Art. 523 of Income Tax Regulations 
(RIR/18), and are treated as nontaxable income when appropriated to the Revenue reserves under "Reserve 
for Grants". 
 
Pursuant to Art. 9, paragraph 4 of Complementary Law 160/17, the benefits related to ICMS, granted by 
state authorities, are considered investment subsidies subject to requirements and conditions. 
 
The Company receives government grants for investments related to ICMS tax incentive granted by the 
government of the State of Mato Grosso do Sul, relating to presumed credit of ICMS on sales of ethanol. 
ICMS tax benefits are contingent on fulfillment of the following conditions: (i) hiring new employees; (ii) 
making new investments; and (iii) increasing annual revenues. 
 
At December 31, 2020, R$ 334,802 (up to 2019 - R$ 244,443) was appropriated and treated as a 
nontaxable item for taxes on income. 
  

2020 2019

Adecoagro Brasil Participações S.A. 1 ,335,864,669 1 ,335,864,669

1 ,335,864,669 1 ,335,864,669



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 

 
 
 

60 of 72 
 

 

UMA receives government grants for investment related to an ICMS tax incentive granted by the 
government of the State of Minas Gerais, relating to presumed credit of ICMS on sales of ethanol, sugar 
cane and electricity. 
 
At December 31, 2020, in "UMA", appropriated to Reserve the grants for R$ 3,611 (2019 - R$ 1,576), 
treated as a nontaxable item for taxes on income. 
 
 

27.3 Carrying value adjustments 

 
(a) Deemed cost 

 
These adjustments refer to the effect of the recognition of the deemed cost of property, plant and 
equipment, net of tax effects, as of the base date January 1, 2009. Management of UMA, based on Brazilian 
generally accepted accounting principles (CPC 37), to be consistent with the approach taken by the Group's 
parent company in the first time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in the 
preparation of the financial statements of Adecoagro S.A, adopted the deemed cost to record its property, 
plant and equipment at that date. 
 
The revaluation increment is depreciated, written-off or disposed to match the underlying assets through a 
charge directly to retained earnings. 

 
(b)  Hedge accounting 

 
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivative and non-derivative instruments that are 
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in equity within "Carrying value adjustments", 
which is included in comprehensive income, and is presented net of the portion transferred to finance 
results and income tax and social contribution. 
 
The Company has adopted hedge accounting and designated the following instruments and items as 
hedges: 
 

a) Hedging instruments 
 

Non-derivative debt financial instruments, linked to the U.S. dollar (Advances on Foreign Exchange 
Contracts (ACC), Export Prepayment (PPE), Related parties Export Credit Note (NCE), among others); 

 

b) Hedging transactions 
 

Forecasts of sales or firm futures commitments, both related to commodities and denominated in 
foreign currency (US$), considered as highly probable because they are based on the projections of the 
sales department. 

 

c) Hedged risks 
 

Hedged risk is the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates in future commodity exports due to 
fluctuations of the U.S. dollar in relation to the Brazilian Real.  
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27.4 Allocation of profits 
 

According to the Company's bylaws, profits will be allocated as determined by the stockholders. 
Stockholders are entitled to a minimum mandatory dividend as established in the Brazilian Corporation 
Law corresponding to 25% of net profit after offsetting any accumulated deficit and adjustments.  The legal 
reserve is appropriate based on 5% of net profit.  
 

Article 20 of the Company's bylaws establishes that the Executive Board can decide on the allocation of 
profit for the year. At December 31, 2020, the Board agreed to distribute dividends of R$ 56,956. This 
decision was ratified by the Extraordinary General Meeting on February 2021. 
 

27.5 Earnings per share 
  

(a)  Basic 
 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Company's stockholders by 
the weighted average number of shares issued during the year, as follows: 
 

 
 

(b)  Diluted 
 

The Company does not have any debt convertible into shares or stock options. There are no potentially 
dilutive instruments. 

 
 

28 Supplementary cash flow disclosures  
 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
 

The Company and its subsidiaries have balances payable for purchased property, plant and equipment 
items. In 2020, the outstanding balance of the parent company is R$ 8,602 (2019 -  R$ 5,100), and that of 
Consolidated is R$ 10,397 (2019 - R$ 5,159). 
 
In 2020, the Company reclassified property, plant and equipment items to available for sale, in the amount 
of R$ 3,452, which did not affect cash. 
  

2020 2019

Profit attributable to stockholders 334,1 7 1      233,566     

Number of common shares at the beginning of the y ear (in 

thousands) 1 ,335,865  1 ,347 ,698 

Weighted av erage number of common shares in the y ear (in 

thousands) 1 ,335,865  1 ,347 ,698 

Basic earnings per thousand shares - R$ 250.1 5         1 7 3.31        
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On October 29, 2020, the Company subscribed capital through a contribution of land of R$ 81,085 in AAP, 
currently an associate of the Company. 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries have capitalized interest on qualifying assets without affecting cash. In 
2020, capitalized amounts in the parent company totaled R$ 8,340 (2019 - R$ 16,241), in the Consolidated 
R$ 8,880 (2019 - R$ 17,386). 

 
(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities 
 
On August 10, 2020, the Company acquired Adecoagro Agricultura e Participações Ltda. ("AAP"). On 
October 29, 2020, a capital subscription was made contributing land and receivables totaling R$ 180,000. 
Subsequently, the Company's investment in AAP was assigned to ABP through a capital reduction. 
   
(c)  Tax credit offsetting 
 
In 2019, UMA settled a portion of its current income tax (Note 22.2) by offsetting against income tax 

withheld at source credits (Note 9), of R$ 34; the balance remains as a tax payable (Note 20). 

 
 

29 Revenue from contracts with customers  
 

Revenue comprises the fair value received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the  
Company and its subsidiaries' business. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and 
discounts. 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries recognize revenue when control of a good or service is transferred to the 
customer, that is, when the contract, the performance obligation and the transaction price can be reliably 
identified, and the transaction price properly allocated. This occurs when specific criteria have been met for 
each of the Company's activities as described below. 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries produce and sell sugar and ethanol and generate and sell electricity. 
Sales are recognized when delivered to the customer, when the customer has full discretion over the 
channel and price to resell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the 
customer's acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until: (i) the products have been shipped to 
the specified location or picked up by the customer; (ii) the risks of obsolescence and loss have been 
transferred to the customer; (iii) the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales 
contract; and (iv) the acceptance provisions have lapsed or the Company has objective evidence that all 
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. 
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The reconciliation between gross and net sales and services revenue is as follows: 
 

 
 

(i) Revenues from exports of sugar to Adecoagro Uruguay S.A. totaled R$ 722,418 (2019 - R$ 90,462) in the 
Company and R$ 788,393 (2019 - R$ 140,187) in the Company and UMA. 
 

(ii) The domestic sales of the Company and its subsidiaries may be subject to the following taxes: PIS/COFINS, 
INSS, ICMS and/or ISS, according to the legislation applicable to each transaction.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Parent company Consolidated

2020 2019 2020 2019

Gross sales revenue

Domestic market

Anhy drous ethanol 524,989        595,1 1 1         524,989            595,1 1 1              

Hy drated ethanol 47 5,201        940,883       57 5,291             1 ,039,47 1         

VHP sugar 1 26                 2 ,41 6                  7 ,31 0                  

Granulated sugar 55,031                44,561                

Organic sugar 1 ,036                  2 ,400                  

Electricity 1 68,57 8        1 56,942        226,67 0            238,650             

Soy bean 3,009             3 ,67 2                 893                      

Corn 1 ,31 4             1 ,31 4                  

Rice 4,057                  

Steam 1 6,7 31           1 5,31 9           

Other 529                  1 98                  529                      1 98                      

Total in the domestic market 1 ,1 90,47 7     1 ,7 08,453     1 ,390,948         1 ,932,651          

Foreign market

VHP sugar (i) 7 90,090       1 48,307        850,1 63             1 91 ,1 65             

Granulated sugar 6,7 89                 6,867                 

Organic sugar 6,597                  

Total in the foreign market 7 90,090        1 48,307        863,549             1 98,032             

Total gross sales revenue 1 ,980,567     1 ,856,7 60     2 ,254,497         2 ,1 30,683         

( - ) Taxes on sales (ii) (1 67 ,932)      (27 1 ,349)      (1 97 ,548)           (302,67 7 )          

( - ) Returns, discounts and rebates (20,048)        (21 ,61 4)         (22,07 2)             (25,61 1 )              

Net sales revenue 1 ,7 92,587     1 ,563,7 97     2 ,034,87 7         1 ,802,395         
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30 Cost of sales  
 

 
 

(i) In 2020, these include changes in the fair value of the harvested agricultural product, namely sugar cane, of           
R$ 141,045 in the Company and R$ 10,706 in UMA (2019 - R$ 38,978 in the Company and R$ 6,338 in 
UMA). 
 

(ii) These refer to taxes recoverable:  
- PIS and COFINS out of period credits, as authorized by law.  
- ICMS credits obtained through the tax benefit granted to the Company and UMA, by the respective states, 
and other cost recoveries (Note 26.5.1). 

 
  

Note Grains

Sugar, 

ethanol and 

electricity 2020 2019 Grains

Sugar, 

ethanol and 

electricity 2020 2019

Inv entories at January  1 9 1 29,221         1 29,221         1 37 ,1 32         1 48,587         1 48,587         1 54,830         

Total cost of production (i) 30                3 ,07 6 1 ,362,961     1 ,366,037    1 ,257 ,341                    3 ,495 1 ,51 7 ,1 07     1 ,520,602     1 ,408,056     

Purchases for resale 31 ,807           31 ,807           34,07 3           34,1 7 8           34,1 7 8           35,565            

               1 ,21 4 1 ,21 4                             1 ,21 4 1 ,21 4              248                 

Sugar cane price adjustment 2,033             2 ,033             2 ,297             2 ,297             -                   

Recov ery  of costs and taxes (ii) (1 00,91 9)       (1 00,91 9)       (1 38,51 6)                          1 87  (1 02,7 08)       (1 02,521 )       (1 39,67 3)       

Rev ersal of loss on inv entory  realization (2,51 3)            (2,51 3)            61                    (1 ,569)            (1 ,569)            309                 

Losses due to breakage during transportation                    1 7 1  8,7 7 2             8,943             (6,1 7 4)                               1 7 1  8,7 7 2             8,943             (6,1 7 4)            

Inv entories at December 31 9 -                   (1 57 ,305)       (1 57 ,305)       (1 29,221 )       -                   (1 7 8,320)       (1 7 8,320)       (1 48,587 )       

Cost of sales 4,461              1 ,27 4,057     1 ,27 8,51 8     1 ,1 54,696     5,067              1 ,428,344    1 ,433,41 1     1 ,304,57 4     

Changes in the fair v alue of the grains harv ested

Parent company Consolidated
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31 Expenses by nature 
 

31.1 Parent company 
 

 
 

  

Parent com pany

2020 2019

Production 

cost of 

biological 

assets

Industrial 

production 

costs

Selling 

expenses

Adm inistrative 

expenses T otal T otal

Salaries and employ ee benefits 35,515 113,842 4,67 9 28,330 182,366 210,631

Depreciation and amortization 17 ,353 458,511 2,032 5,250 483,146 465,921

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 128,7 7 5 27 ,594 985 18 157 ,37 2 132,984

Industrial and agricultural inputs 150,683 30,7 56 181,439 204,041

Sugarcane purchased from suppliers 7 2,829 7 2,829 43,209

Fuel and lubricants 8,928 7 8,118 221 405 87 ,67 2 99,958

Transportation expenses 3,151 91,639 19 94,809 45,27 3

Electricity 3,160 152 27 1 3,583 3,7 29

Electricity  distribution expenses 7 ,892 7 ,892 8,044

Maintenance and repairs 8,87 6 57 ,338 933 87 7 68,024 7 8,324

Construction works and serv ices contracted 26,421 24,884 51,305 55,407

Taxes and charges 243 12,117 37 17 5 12,57 2 7 ,87 0

Professional serv ices 1 ,523 2,022 1,582 14,124 19,251 15,841

Commissions 7 81 7 81 1,363

Contingencies 2,558 2,558 1,209

Leases 6,356 87 8                       449 204 7 ,887 7 ,363

Insurance 496 2,396 69 97 3,058 3,411

Travel expenses 55 185 68 441 7 49 3,261

Other expenses and costs 2,217 3,7 59 2,108 3,199 11,283 9,557

Subtotal 387 ,441 891,540 113,627 55,968 1,448,57 6 1,397 ,396

Company -owned sugarcane consumed 47 1,421 47 1,421 348,961

Total costs and expenses 387 ,441 1,362,961 113,627 55,968 1,919,997 1,7 46,357
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31.2 Consolidated 
 

 
  

Consolidated

2020 2019

Production 

cost of 

biological 

assets

Industrial 

production 

costs

Selling 

expenses

Adm inistrative 

expenses T otal T otal

Salaries and employ ee benefits 47 ,7 60 139,431 8,168 45,985 241,344 268,820

Depreciation and amortization 19,366 500,655 2,514 5,665 528,200 511,910

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 142,7 7 5 29,496 1,017 25 17 3,313 146,828

Industrial and agricultural inputs 165,57 1 35,385 200,956 219,247

Processing 3,222

Sugarcane purchased from suppliers 7 3,169 7 3,169 44,268

Fuel and lubricants 10,825 87 ,664 248 454 99,191 113,7 92

Transportation expenses 3,151 96,7 19 43 99,913 49,397

Electricity 3,844 158 323 4,325 5,112

Electricity  distribution expenses 11,594 11,594 11,996

Maintenance and repairs 10,354 66,284 1,525 999 7 9,162 88,138

Construction works and serv ices contracted 27 ,868 26,285 54,153 58,683

Taxes and charges 243 12,182 1,188 228 13,841 9,160

Professional serv ices 1 ,7 42 2,365 3,432 16,194 23,7 33 19,188

Commissions 1,680 1,680 2,146

Contingencies 3,27 3 3,27 3 1,615

Leases 6,699 1,243 7 36 296 8,97 4 9,931

Insurance 565 2,7 15 87 115 3,482 3,919

Travel expenses 90 27 3 7 6 531 97 0 3,514

Other expenses and costs 2,985 5,230 3,398 2,899 14,512 12,080

Subtotal 436,843 989,37 2 132,540 7 7 ,030 1,635,7 85 1,582,966

Company -owned sugarcane consumed 527 ,7 35 527 ,7 35 394,7 04

Total costs and expenses 436,843 1,517 ,107 132,540 7 7 ,030 2,163,520 1,97 7 ,67 0
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32 Other income (expenses), net  
 

 
 

(i) In January 2019, the Company completed the sale of its subsidiary Q065 Negócios Imobiliários Ltda., the 
main underlying asset of which is Fazenda Alto Alegre, for R$ 63,200. This transaction gave rise to a gain of 
R$ 38,555 recorded in the statement of income as a "Gain on sale of subsidiaries". 
 

(ii) The Company determined the gains/losses on derivative financial instruments contracted to hedge 
transactions with products. In 2020, the parent company's gains on sugar and losses on ethanol amounted 
to R$ 9,128 and (R$ 3,389), respectively (2019 - losses of (R$ 35) and (R$ 82), respectively), and in the 
subsidiary losses on soybean totaled (R$ 9).  

 
(iii) Refers to income from the lease of facilities between the subsidiaries AVI and AEN. 

 
(iv) CBIO decarbonization credits were sold for R$ 18,382 (Company) and R$ 1,714 (UMA), with an average 

price of R$ 40.87. The results were calculated after the deduction of taxes and operating costs. 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019

Gain (loss) on disposal/write-off of property , plant and equipment 1 ,67 7                 (7 ,893)               0 924                (8,57 2)           

Gain on sale of subsidiaries (i) -                      38,555               0 -                 38,555          

Adjustment to fair v alue of receiv ables from sale of subsidiary 28,7 7 9              5,1 1 4                  28,7 7 9         5,1 1 4             

Sale of sundry  materials 1 ,1 1 7                  984                     882                1 ,01 1             

Phy sical inv entory  adjustments 1 80                     (465)                    0 1 80                (468)              

Gains (losses) on financial instruments entered into -                      -                      0 -                 -                 

to hedge commodity  transactions (ii) 5,389                 (1 1 7 )                    0 5,389            (1 26)               

Changes in the prov ision for contingencies 1 ,601                  (621 )                    0 1 ,556             (1 56)               

Recov ery  of expenses 8,420                 2622 0 8,686            3 ,389            

Changes in the prov ision for impairment of assets (2,51 3)                21 0                     (3 ,441 )           1 91                 

Income from leases between companies (iii) 1 ,569                  2 ,51 7                  -                 

Gains on insurance indemnities 1 ,505                  4,67 7                 1 ,7 25             5,01 9             

Pay ment of state fund - grants (7 ,228)               (8,044)          

Statute of limitations of tax credits (231 )               

Profit (loss) on the sale of Cbios (iv ) 1 5,7 94               1 7 ,207          

Other 1 ,458                  540                     0 267                (344)              

57 ,7 48               46,1 23               54,1 1 0          43,382         

Parent company Consolidated 
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33 Finance income and costs 
 

 
 
(i) In 2020, the Company executed the following derivative instruments: swap - gains of R$ 9,484 and 

currency NDF: gains of R$ 4,845 and losses of (R$ 13,965). In 2019, they were: Currency NDF: gains 
of R$ 4,403 and losses of (R$ 355). 

 
(ii) In the Company, realized amounts of cash flow hedges are transferred from equity to the statement of 

income as "Cash flow hedge - Transfer of assets". The amounts transferred in 2020 relate to Debts 
were: gains of R$ 6,330 (2019 - debt: loss of (R$ 4,653) and hedge accounting swaps: gain of R$ 682) 

 
(iii) In the Company, foreign exchange gains and losses are presented net of hedge accounting effects 

under "Foreign exchange loss on financial activities, net". In 2020: gain of R$ 405,042, loss of          
(R$ 910,233) and hedge accounting of R$ 466,590 (2019: gain of R$ 365,135, loss of (R$ 438,210) and 
hedge accounting of R$ 68,521)). 

 
(iv) In the Company, expenses capitalized for qualifying assets on borrowings refer to interest on bank 

loans of R$ 7,433 (2019 - R$ 8,336)  and capitalization of interest on the depreciation of right-of-use 
of R$ 907 (2019 - R$ 7,667) related to bearer plants and foreign exchange gains of R$ 238 in 2019.    

Parent company Consolidated

2020  2019 2020  2019

Interest income on short-term bank deposits             1 0,333                   1 2,220 1 1 ,548          1 4,353              

Deriv ativ e financial instruments, net (i)                   364                     4,048 301                4,056                

Cash flow hedges, transfer from equity  (ii)               6,330                              -   3 ,961            -                     

Interest receiv ed                   992                              -   1 ,658            

Other finance income                1 ,1 03                      1 ,633 2,67 3           3 ,425                

1 9,1 22           1 7 ,901                 20,1 41         21 ,834              

Bank borrowings          (80,568)                (40,347 ) (84,61 8)       (43,344)            

Borrowings from related parties        (1 34,821 )               (1 1 6,621 ) (1 41 ,344)     (1 23,1 58)          

Expenses with the prepay ment of borrowings                 (31 4)                              -   (31 4)              -                     

Adjustment to present v alue of leases           (41 ,035)                (32,393) (43,938)       (34,645)            

Foreign exchange losses on financial activ ities, net (iii)          (38,601 )                    (4,554) (40,91 7 )       (4,37 3)              

Cash flow hedges, transfer from equity  (ii)                        -                     (3 ,97 1 ) -                 (3 ,97 1 )               

Other finance costs             (3 ,7 59)                   (2,7 1 2) (6,000)          (5,062)               

                       -                                -                        -                             -   

on qualify ing assets (iv ) 8,340             1 6,241                 8,880           1 7 ,386              

       (290,7 58)              (1 84,357 )       (308,251 )           (1 97 ,1 67 )

(27 1 ,636)      (1 66,456)             (288,1 1 0)     (1 7 5,333)          Finance result

Finance income

Total finance income

Finance costs

Less: finance cost amounts capitalized

Total finance costs recognized in the                       

statement of income
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34 Share-based remuneration and restricted share plans 
 

These are share-based remuneration plans of Adecoagro S.A., the Group's parent company (Note 1.2), in 
which the Group's executives are entitled to participate  are an obligation of the parent company 
Adecoagro S.A. 
 
On January 1, 2014, Adecoagro Brasil Participações S.A. entered into an agreement with Adecoagro S.A. 
(ultimate parent company of the Group, with shares traded on the New York Stock Exchange), for the 
purpose of reimbursing the foreign parent company for the fair value of the shares that will be granted to 
the executives who render services to the Group companies in Brazil. 
 
On January 1, 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries entered into a contract with Adecoagro Brasil 
Participações S.A., with the consent of Adecoagro S.A, for the transfer of share-based remuneration and 
restricted share plans granted to its employees.  

 
34.1 Restricted share plan 

 
The restricted share plan consists of awards of restricted shares granted to certain employees of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
This plan is administered by the Group's Remuneration Committee and has been effective since 2010. The 
shares are granted to the beneficiaries in equal amounts annually over a term of three years (33% each year, 
at the date defined for the granting), provided the beneficiary is still rendering services to the Group 
companies. The beneficiary loses the right to benefits not granted if the employment relationship with the 
Group is terminated before the date established for the granting of the shares. 
 
Each share granted is equivalent to one common share and the amount of the benefit granted is measured 
at fair value at the date of presentation of the subsidiaries' financial statements. 
 
In 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries reimbursed R$ 3,295 to the parent company Adecoagro Brasil 
Participações S.A., which transferred  this amount to Adecoagro S.A. (2019 - R$ 3,356 - the Company and 
its subsidiaries reimbursed R$ 3,356). 
 

34.1.1 Parent company 
  
Under the contract entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries and Adecoagro Brasil 
Participações  S.A., which is responsible for the reimbursement to Adecoagro S.A. of the transfer of the 
remuneration plan for purchases of restricted shares granted to its employees, the Company reimbursed 
the amounts irrevocably transferred to the beneficiaries of the shares (vesting) in the current year. In 2020, 
R$ 3,097 (2019 - R$ 3,161) was recorded and settled in cash. At the time the restricted shares granted are 
released to the holder (vesting), the Company and its subsidiaries settle the related social and labor 
charges. 
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At December 31, 2020, the Company recorded the balance of shares granted but not yet vested, at market 
value, in the amount of R$ 13,455 (2019 - R$ 11,512). The number of shares corresponding to the benefit 
granted is as follows: 
 

 
  

 Parent 

company 

 Number of 

restricted 

shares  

 Market price 

per share (in 

US$) 

 Total at fair 

value (in 

thousands of 

reais) 

At January  1 , 2020 341 ,224            8.37                       1 1 ,51 2                   

Changes in grants in the period 1 82,221            0.00 5,040                     

Vested in the period (1 42,685)          3 .69 (3,097 )                   

-                      0.00 -                          

Balance of granted shares, not v ested: -€                   0.00 -€                       

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 6 1 ,020                 6.80 36                           

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 7 990                     6.80 35                           

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 8 46,899              6.80 1 ,657                     

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 9 1 31 ,860            6.80 4,660                    

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 2020 1 99,991            6.80 7 ,067                    

At December 31 , 2020 380,7 60           1 3 ,455                   

At January  1 , 201 9 262,281            6.96                       7 ,07 3                    
0 0.00 -                           

Changes in grants in the period 1 98,869            0.00 7 ,600                    

Vested in the period (1 1 9,926)          6.82 (3,1 61 )                   
-                      0.00 -                          

Balance of granted shares, not v ested: -€                   0.00 -€                       

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 6 1 ,020                 8.37 34                           

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 7 38,388              8.37 1 ,295                     

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 8 95,37 3              8.37 3,21 8                     

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 9 206,443           8.37 6,965                     

At December 31 , 201 9 341 ,224            1 1 ,51 2                   

 Restricted shares - Plan 2010  
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34.1.2 Consolidated 
 

Under the contract entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries and Adecoagro Brasil 
Participações S.A., which is responsible for the reimbursement to Adecoagro S.A. of the transfer of the 
remuneration plan for purchases of restricted shares granted to its employees, the Company and its 
subsidiaries reimbursed the amounts irrevocably transferred to the beneficiaries of the shares (vesting) in 
the current year. In 2020, R$ 3,295 (2019 - R$ 3,356) was recorded and settled in cash. At the time the 
restricted shares granted are released to the holder (vesting), the Company and its subsidiaries settle the 
related social and labor charges. 
 
At December 31, 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries recorded the balance of shares granted but not yet 
vested, at market value, in the amount of R$ 14,263 (2019 - R$ 12,189). The number of shares 
corresponding to the benefit granted is as follows: 
 

 
  

 Nu m ber of 

rest rict ed 

sh a res  

 Ma rket  price 

per sh a re (in  

US$ ) 

 T ot a l  a t  fa ir  

v a lu e (in  

t h ou sa nds of 

rea is) 

At January  1 , 2020 361 ,295            8.37 1 2,1 89                

Changes in grants in the period 1 94,1 7 4            0.00 5,369                  

Vested in the period (1 51 ,830)          3 .69                        (3 ,295)                

Balance of granted shares, not v ested

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 6 1 ,020                 6.80 36                         

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 7 990                    6.80 35                         

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 8 50,01 2              6.80 1 ,7 67                  

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 9 1 39,67 3           6.80 4,936                  

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 2020 21 1 ,944            6.80 7 ,489                  

At December 31 , 2020 403,639          1 4,263               

At January  1 , 201 9 27 8,095           6.96                       7 ,500                  

0 0.00 -                        

Changes in grants in the period 21 0,528           0.00 8,045                  

Vested in the period (1 27 ,328)         6.82 (3,356)                

Balance of granted shares, not v ested

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 6 1 ,020                8.37 34                        

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 7 40,666             8.37 1 ,37 2                  

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 8 1 01 ,507           8.37 3,425                  

  Plan 201 0 - grant in 201 9 21 8,1 02           8.37 7 ,358                  

-                     -                           -                       

At December 31 , 201 9 361 ,295           1 2,1 89               

Consolidated 

Restricted shares - Plan 2010 



Adecoagro Vale do Ivinhema S.A. 
 

Notes to the financial statements  
at December 31, 2020 
All amounts in thousands of reais unless otherwise stated 
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35 Insurance  
 

The Company and its subsidiaries contract insurance for assets at risks, taking into consideration the 
nature of its activities, the operational risks and the guidance of insurance advisors. At December 31, 2020, 
the risks covered and related amounts are as follows: 
 

 
 

(i) The amount cover for inventories of finished products varies in relation to the quantities of products in 
inventory.  
 

(ii) Sugar cane plantations are not insured, but the subsidiaries adopt preventive measures.  
 

 

 

*         *         *

Parent company Consolidated

Values Values

at risk at risk

Insured assets Risks covered declared declared

1 ,252,200               2 ,1 05,7 00           

Inv entories of finished products (i) Sundry  risks 432,7 00                  51 5,060               

99,094                     1 05,41 5                

Vehicles Body Market Market

Loss of profits Sundry  risks 87 7 ,000                  969,000              

Soy bean plantations (ii) 1 1 ,459                      1 1 ,459                  

Buildings, machinery  and industrial 

facilities Fire, lightening, explosions of any  nature and other

Agricultural machinery  and equipment Fire, lightning, explosion and implosion, burglary , 

theft, electric damage, and civ il liability

 Fire, lightening, waterspout, strong and cold winds, 

hailstorm, excessiv e rain, drought, frost and excessiv e 

temperature v ariation 


